NASA TECHNICAL REPORT



NASA TR R-381

CLASSICAL EIGHTH- AND LOWER-ORDER RUNGE-KUTTA-NYSTROM FORMULAS WITH STEPSIZE CONTROL FOR SPECIAL SECOND-ORDER DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

by Erwin Fehlberg

George C. Marshall Space Flight Center Marshall Space Flight Center, Ala. 35812

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION . WASHINGTON, D. C. . MARCH 1972

1. Report No.	2. Government Accessi	on No.	3. Recipient's Catalog	No.
NASA TR R-381				
4. Title and Subtitle			5. Report Date March 1972	
Classical Eighth- and Lower-Order with Stepsize Control for Special Se			6. Performing Organiza	ation Code
7. Author(s)			8. Performing Organiza M533	tion Report No.
Erwin Fehlberg		<u> </u>	0. Work Unit No.	
9. Performing Organization Name and Address			014-00-00-00-	62
George C. Marshall Space Flight C Marshall Space Flight Center, Alab	1	1. Contract or Grant	No.	
		1	3. Type of Report and	4
12. Sponsoring Agency Name and Address			Technical Rep	ort
National Aeronautics and Space Adr Washington, D. C. 20546	ministration		4. Sponsoring Agency	Code
15. Supplementary Notes				
Prepared by Computation Laborato Science and Engineering	ry			
the special second-order (vector) control procedure, based on a com formulas require fewer evaluations ated by using the standard proceduthis author's earlier Runge-Kutta f With results being of the same accupercent or more computer time couwith our earlier Runge-Kutta formulations.	plete coverage of the per step than other refor stepsize contrormulas for first-ouracy, in this exampared with other a	e leading term of the to Runge-Kutta-Nyströn rol. They also requireder differential equatole the new Runge-Kuttuthors' Runge-Kutta-N differential equations.	runcation error in n formulas if the le fewer evaluation ions. An example ta-Nyström formulas	ax. The latter are operas per step thank is presented.
17. Key Words (Suggested by Author(s))		18. Distribution Statement		
		Categories 19	, 8, 34	
10 Complete Classification and	20. Sequeity Closeif I			22 Price*
19. Security Classif. (of this report) Unclassified	20. Security Classif. (c	of this page)	, 8, 34 21. No. of Pages 67	22. Price* \$3.00

^{*}For sale by the National Technical Information Service, Springfield, Virginia 22151

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Pag€
	INTRODUCTION	1
SECTION I.	EIGHTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 8(9)	2
SECTION II.	SEVENTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 7(8)	24
SECTION III.	SIXTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 6(7)	28
SECTION IV.	FIFTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 5(6)	30
SECTION V.	FOURTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 4(5)	32
SECTION VI.	SOME RUNGE-KUTTA-NYSTRÖM FORMULAS OF OTHER AUTHORS	3.4
SECTION VII.	APPLICATION TO A NUMERICAL PROBLEM	35
	REFERENCES	37

LIST OF TABLES

Table	Title	Page
1.	Complete Equations of Condition for Eighth-Order Formula RKN 8(9)	38
2.	Reduced Equations of Condition for Eighth-Order Formula RKN 8(9)	45
3.	Coefficients for an Eighth-Order Formula RKN 8(9)	46
4.	Error Coefficients for RKN 8(9) of Table 3	47
5.	Reduced Equations of Condition for Seventh-Order Formula RKN 7(8)	48
6.	Coefficients for a Seventh-Order Formula RKN 7(8)	49
7.	Error Coefficients for RKN 7(8) of Table 6	5 0
8.	Reduced Equations of Condition for Sixth-Order Formula RKN 6(7)	51
9.	Coefficients for a Sixth-Order Formula RKN 6(7)	52
10.	Error Coefficients for RKN 6(7) of Table 9	53
11.	Reduced Equations of Condition for Fifth-Order Formula RKN 5(6)	53
12.	Coefficients for a Fifth-Order Formula RKN 5(6)	54
13.	Error Coefficients for RKN 5(6) of Table 12	55
14.	Reduced Equations of Condition for Fourth-Order Formula RKN 4(5)	55
15.	Coefficients for a Fourth-Order Formula RKN 4(5)	56

LIST OF TABLES (Concluded)

Table	Title	Page
16.	Error Coefficients for RKN 4(5) of Table 15	56
17.	Coefficients for Nyström's Fourth-Order Formula RKN 4	57
18.	Error Coefficients for Nyström's Fourth-Order Formula RKN 4 of Table 17	57
19.	Coefficients for Nyström's Fifth-Order Formula RKN 5	58
20.	Error Coefficients for Nyström's Fifth-Order Formula RKN 5 of Table 19	58
21.	Coefficients for Albrecht's Sixth-Order Formula RKN 6	59
22.	Error Coefficients for Albrecht's Sixth-Order Formula RKN 6 of Table 21	60
23.	Application of the Various Formulas to a Numerical Problem	61

CLASSICAL EIGHTH- AND LOWER-ORDER RUNGE-KUTTA-NYSTRÖM FORMULAS WITH STEPSIZE CONTROL FOR SPECIAL SECOND-ORDER DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

INTRODUCTION

- 1. In earlier reports [1], [2], [3] the author derived and listed Runge-Kutta formulas with stepsize control for first-order differential equations. Although second-order differential equations can be converted to first-order differential equations by introducing the first derivatives as new variables, this amounts to an increased computational effort, since we then have to deal with twice as many differential equations as in the original second-order problem. Therefore, the direct Runge-Kutta integration of second-order differential equations without conversion to first-order equations might be preferable. Direct Runge-Kutta formulas for second-order differential equations were first published by E. J. NYSTRÖM [4]. We therefore refer in this report to such direct Runge-Kutta formulas for second-order differential equations as Runge-Kutta-Nyström (RKN) formulas.
- 2. In this report we restrict ourselves to a special class of second-order (vector) differential equations,

$$\ddot{x} = f(t,x) \quad , \tag{1}$$

which do not contain the first derivative \dot{x} on the right-hand side. Such special second-order differential equations are frequently encountered in mechanics and physics.

The derivation of the equations of condition for the Runge-Kutta-Nyström coefficients is much simpler and easier for the special equations (1) than for the general equations which would also contain the first derivatives \dot{x} on the right-hand side.

3. Similar to the Runge-Kutta formulas of our earlier reports [1], [2], [3], the Runge-Kutta-Nyström formulas of this report include an automatic stepsize control based on a complete coverage of the leading term of the local truncation error in x. This coverage is achieved by one additional evaluation of the differential equations. Each of our Runge-Kutta-Nyström formulas represents in fact a pair of integration formulas for x which differ

from one another by the one additional evaluation of the differential equations. The orders of these two formulas differ by 1. Therefore, the difference of the formulas represents an approximation for the leading term of the truncation error in x for the lower-order formula. By requiring that this difference remain between preset limits, an automatic stepsize control for the lower-order formula can be established.

SECTION I. EIGHTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 8(9)

4. For the sake of brevity in the derivation of the formulas, let us consider in the following a system of two second-order differential equations:

$$\left.\begin{array}{ccc}
\ddot{x} &=& f(t,x,y) \\
\ddot{y} &=& g(t,x,y)
\end{array}\right\} .$$
(2)

Our results, however, will hold, in a quite obvious way, for a system of any number of second-order differential equations. We introduce

$$\mathbf{f}_{0} = \mathbf{f}(\mathbf{t}_{0}, \mathbf{x}_{0}, \mathbf{y}_{0})$$

$$\mathbf{f}_{K} = \mathbf{f}\left(\mathbf{t}_{0} + \alpha_{K} \mathbf{h}, \mathbf{x}_{0} + \dot{\mathbf{x}}_{0} \alpha_{K} \mathbf{h} + \mathbf{h}^{2} \cdot \sum_{\lambda=0}^{K-1} \gamma_{K\lambda} \mathbf{f}_{\lambda}, \right)$$

$$\mathbf{y}_{0} + \dot{\mathbf{y}}_{0} \alpha_{K} \mathbf{h} + \mathbf{h}^{2} \cdot \sum_{\lambda=0}^{K-1} \gamma_{K\lambda} \mathbf{g}_{\lambda}$$

$$(\kappa = 1, 2, \dots, 11)$$

$$(3)$$

and corresponding expressions for the second equation (2).

For any κ the sum of the coefficients $\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$ ($\lambda=0,\ 1,\ \ldots,\ \kappa$ - 1) is related to α_{κ} by:

$$\sum_{\lambda=0}^{\kappa-1} \gamma_{\kappa\lambda} = \frac{1}{2} \alpha_{\kappa}^2 , \qquad (4)$$

as can easily be seen by a Taylor expansion of the x- or y- argument of $f_{_{\mathcal{K}}}$ in (3).

For an eighth-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula with stepsize control we then require

$$\mathbf{x} = \mathbf{x}_{0} + \dot{\mathbf{x}}_{0}\mathbf{h} + \mathbf{h}^{2} \cdot \sum_{\kappa=0}^{10} \mathbf{c}_{\kappa} \mathbf{f}_{\kappa} + 0(\mathbf{h}^{9})$$

$$\mathbf{\hat{x}} = \mathbf{x}_{0} + \dot{\mathbf{x}}_{0}\mathbf{h} + \mathbf{h}^{2} \cdot \sum_{\kappa=0}^{11} \mathbf{\hat{c}}_{\kappa} \mathbf{f}_{\kappa} + 0(\mathbf{h}^{10})$$

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}} = \dot{\mathbf{x}}_{0} + \mathbf{h} \cdot \sum_{\kappa=0}^{10} \mathbf{c}_{\kappa}^{i} \mathbf{f}_{\kappa} + 0(\mathbf{h}^{9})$$
(5)

with

$$\hat{c}_{\kappa} = c_{\kappa} \text{ for } \kappa = 0, 1, 2, \dots, 9$$

$$\hat{c}_{10} = 0$$

$$\hat{c}_{11} = c_{10}$$
(6)

and corresponding formulas for the solution of the second differential equation (2). In (3) and (5) the quantities t_0 , x_0 , y_0 , \dot{x}_0 , \dot{y}_0 are the initial values for the integration step under consideration, while h stands for the integration stepsize.

As in our earlier report [2], we require that the last evaluation of the differential equation can be taken over as first evaluation for the next step, thereby reducing the number of evaluations per step by one. By this requirement, the coefficients $\gamma_{11\lambda}$ and α_{11} are determined:

$$\gamma_{110} = c_0, \ \gamma_{111} = c_1, \ \gamma_{112} = c_2, \dots, \gamma_{1110} = c_{10}, \ \alpha_{11} = 1.$$
 (7)

Our problem then consists in finding the Runge-Kutta-Nyström coefficients α_{κ} , $\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$, c_{κ} , \dot{c}_{κ} so that the right-hand sides of (5) are really eighth- or ninth- order approximations of x or \dot{x} . By expanding in Taylor series the solution of (2) as well as the right-hand sides of (5) and

equating the corresponding terms in both series, equations of condition for these coefficients can be obtained.

5. We first expand the solution x, y of (2) in a (truncated) Taylor series:

$$\mathbf{x} = \mathbf{x}_{0} + \sum_{\nu=1}^{10} \frac{\mathbf{x}_{0}^{(\nu)}}{\nu!} \mathbf{h}^{\nu}$$

$$\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{y}_{0} + \sum_{\nu=1}^{10} \frac{\mathbf{y}_{0}^{(\nu)}}{\nu!} \mathbf{h}^{\nu}$$
(8)

using equations (2) and their derivatives for the computation of the total derivatives $x_0^{(\nu)}$, $y_0^{(\nu)}$ in (8).

For the computation of the derivatives of (2) we introduce the differential operator:

$$D = \frac{\partial}{\partial t} + \dot{x} \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \dot{y} \frac{\partial}{\partial y} \qquad . \tag{9}$$

Obviously, the following rules hold for this operator:

$$D(\varphi + \psi) = D(\varphi) + D(\psi)$$

$$D(\varphi \cdot \psi) = \varphi D(\psi) + \psi D(\varphi)$$

$$D[D^{n}(\varphi)] = D^{n+1}(\varphi) + n \left[D^{n-1}(\varphi_{x}) f + D^{n-1}(\varphi_{y}) g\right]$$
(10)

The operators $D^2(\varphi)$, etc., are defined as symbolic powers of D:

$$D^{2}(\varphi) = \left(\varphi_{t} + \varphi_{x} \cdot \dot{x} + \varphi_{y} \cdot \dot{y}\right)^{2} = \varphi_{tt} + 2\varphi_{tx} \cdot \dot{x} + 2\varphi_{ty} \cdot \dot{y}$$
$$+ \varphi_{xx} \cdot \dot{x}^{2} + 2\varphi_{xy} \cdot \dot{x}\dot{y} + \varphi_{yy} \cdot \dot{y}^{2},$$

etc.

Observing the above rules, the total derivatives of x are obtainable from (2). The resulting lengthy expressions for these derivatives are somewhat shortened by the introduction of the following abbreviations:

$$\{\varphi(f_{\mathbf{X}}) \psi(f)\} = \varphi(f_{\mathbf{X}}) \psi(f) + \varphi(f_{\mathbf{Y}}) \psi(g)$$
(11)

$$\langle \varphi(f_{XX}) \psi_{1}(f) \psi_{2}(f) \rangle = \varphi(f_{XX}) \psi_{1}(f) \psi_{2}(f) + \varphi(f_{XY}) [\psi_{1}(f) \psi_{2}(g)]$$

$$+ \psi_{1}(g) \psi_{2}(f)] + \varphi(f_{YY}) \psi_{1}(g) \psi_{2}(g)$$

$$(12)$$

Extending (11) to the case that $\psi(f)$ is a product of two operators, $\psi(f) = \{\psi_1(f_x), \psi_2(f)\}$, we define,

$$\begin{split} \left\{ \varphi \left(\mathbf{f_x} \right) \; \left\{ \psi_1(\mathbf{f_x}) \; \psi_2(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \right\} &= \varphi \left(\mathbf{f_x} \right) \left[\psi_1(\mathbf{f_x}) \; \psi_2(\mathbf{f}) \; + \; \psi_1(\mathbf{f_y}) \; \psi_2(\mathbf{g}) \right] \\ &+ \varphi (\mathbf{f_y}) \; \left[\psi_1(\mathbf{g_x}) \; \psi_2(\mathbf{f}) \; + \psi_1(\mathbf{g_y}) \; \psi_2(\mathbf{g}) \right] \end{split}$$

and similarly for the case that $\psi(\mathbf{f})$ in (11) is a product of more than two operators.

In an obvious way, (12) can also be extended to the case of third- and higher-order partial derivatives f_{xxx} , f_{xxxx} , etc. In the case of a third-order partial derivative we define:

and similarly for higher-order partial derivatives.

Using the abbreviations (11), (12), we obtain from (2) for the total derivatives of x (always taken for $t=t_0$):

$$x^{II} = f$$

$$x^{III} = D(f)$$

$$x^{IV} = D^{2}(f) + \left\{f_{x}^{f}\right\}$$

$$x^{V} = D^{2}(f) + 3\left\{D(f_{x})f\right\} + \left\{f_{x}^{f}D(f)\right\}$$

$$x^{VI} = D^{4}(f) + 6\left\{D^{2}(f_{x})f\right\} + 3\left\{f_{x}^{f}f^{2}\right\} + 4\left\{D(f_{x})D(f)\right\}$$

$$+ \left\{f_{x}^{f}D^{2}(f)\right\} + \left\{f_{x}^{f}f_{x}^{f}\right\}$$

$$x^{VII} = D^{5}(f) + 10\left\{D^{2}(f_{x})f\right\} + 15\left\{D(f_{xx})f^{2}\right\} + 10\left\{D^{2}(f_{x})D(f)\right\}$$

$$+ 10 < f_{xx}^{f}D(f) > + 5\left\{D(f_{x})D^{2}(f)\right\} + 5\left\{D(f_{x})\left\{f_{x}^{f}\right\}\right\}$$

$$+ \left\{f_{x}^{f}D^{3}(f)\right\} + 3\left\{f_{x}^{f}\left\{D(f_{x})f\right\}\right\} + \left\{f_{x}^{f}\left\{f_{x}D(f)\right\}\right\}$$

$$+ 15 < f_{xxx}^{f} + 60 < D(f_{xx})fD(f) > + 15\left\{D^{2}(f_{x})D^{2}(f)\right\}$$

$$+ 15 < D^{2}(f_{x})\left\{f_{x}^{f}\right\} + 10 < f_{xx}^{f}\left\{D(f)\right\}^{2} > + 15 < f_{xx}^{f}D^{2}(f) >$$

$$+ 15 < f_{xx}^{f}\left\{f_{x}^{f}\right\} > + 6\left\{D(f_{x})D^{3}(f)\right\} + 18\left\{D(f_{x})\left\{D(f_{x}^{f})f\right\}\right\}$$

$$+ 6\left\{D(f_{x})\left\{f_{x}^{f}D(f)\right\}\right\} + \left\{f_{x}^{f}\left\{D(f_{x})D(f)\right\}\right\} + \left\{f_{x}^{f}\left\{f_{x}^{f}D^{2}(f)\right\}\right\}$$

$$+ 3\left\{f_{x}^{f}\left\{f_{x}^{f}\right\}\right\}$$

$$+ 3\left\{f_{x}^{f}\left\{f_{x}^{f}\right\}\right\}$$

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{x}^{|\mathbf{X}|} &= \mathbf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}) + 21\{\mathbf{D}^{5}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\mathbf{f}\} + 105 < \mathbf{O}^{3}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xx}})\mathbf{f}^{2} > + 35\{\mathbf{D}^{4}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}) \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f})\} \\ &+ 105 < \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xxx}})\mathbf{f}^{2} > + 210 < \mathbf{O}^{2}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xx}})\mathbf{f} \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}) > + 35\{\mathbf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}) \mathbf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f})\} \\ &+ 35\{\mathbf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}^{2}\}\} + 105 < \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xxx}}\mathbf{f}^{2} \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}) > + 30 < \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xx}}) \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f})\}^{2} > \\ &+ 105 < \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xx}})\mathbf{f} \mathbf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}) > + 105 < \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xx}}) \mathbf{f} \{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}^{4}\} > + 21\{\mathbf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}) \mathbf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f})\} \\ &+ 63\{\mathbf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\mathbf{f}\} + 21\{\mathbf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f})\} + 35 < \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xx}} \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}) \mathbf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}) > \\ &+ 35 < \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xx}} \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f})\{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}^{4}\} > + 21 < \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xx}}\mathbf{f} \mathbf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f}) > + 63 < \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xx}}\mathbf{f} \{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\mathbf{f}\} \\ &+ 21 < \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}) > + 21 < \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xx}}\mathbf{f} \mathbf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f}) > + 63 < \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{xx}}\mathbf{f} \{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\mathbf{f}\} \\ &+ 21 < \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}) > + 21 < \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}\mathbf{f} \mathbf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f}) > + 42 < \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}\mathbf{f}\} \\ &+ 21 \left\{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}) > + 28\{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f})\} + 7\{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}\mathbf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f})\} \\ &+ 21 \left\{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}) > + 28\{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f})\} + 7\{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}\mathbf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f})\} \\ &+ 21 \left\{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}) > + 28\{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}\} \mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f})\} + 10 \left\{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}\{\mathbf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\} + 7\{\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}\mathbf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f})\} + 10 \left\{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}\{\mathbf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}})\} + 10 \left\{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}\{\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}\mathbf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f})\} + 10 \left\{\mathbf{$$

(con.)

$$\begin{array}{l} + 45 \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! < \! D^{\!2}(f_{_{XX}}) f^{\!2} \! > \right\} + 20 \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D^{\!3}(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \\ + 15 \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! < \! f_{_{XXX}} f^{\!3} \! > \right\} + 60 \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! < \! D(f_{_{XX}}) f \; D(f) \! > \right\} \\ + 15 \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D^{\!2}(f_{_{X}}) \; D^{\!2}(f) \right\} \right\} + 15 \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D^{\!2}(f_{_{X}}) \; \left\{ f_{_{X}} f \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + 10 \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! < \! f_{_{XX}} \left[D(f) \right]^{2} \! > \right\} + 15 \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! < \! f_{_{XX}} f \; D^{\!2}(f) \! > \right\} \\ + 15 \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! < \! f_{_{XX}} f \left\{ f_{_{X}} f \right\} \right\} \right\} + 6 \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D^{\!3}(f) \right\} \right\} \\ + 18 \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) f \right\} \right\} \right\} + 6 \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \left\{ f_{_{X}} \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D^{\!2}(f_{_{X}}) f \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \right\} \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \right\} \\ + \left\{ f_{_{X}} \! \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \\ + \left\{ D(f_{_{X}}) \; D(f) \right\} \\ +$$

Corresponding expressions hold for the total derivatives of y.

6. Next, we have to expand (3) in a Taylor series. Let us list the result for $\kappa = 1$:

$$\begin{split} &f_{1} = f + D(f) \ \alpha_{1}h + \frac{1}{2} \ D^{2}(f) \ \alpha_{1}^{2} \ h^{2} + \frac{1}{2} \ \{f_{x}f\} \ \alpha_{1}^{2} \ h^{2} + \frac{1}{6} \ D^{3} \ (f) \ \alpha_{1}^{3} \ h^{3} \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} \ \{D(f_{x})f\} \ \alpha_{1}^{3} \ h^{3} + \frac{1}{24} \ D^{4}(f) \ \alpha_{1}^{4} \ h^{4} + \frac{1}{4} \{D^{2}(f_{x})f\} \ \alpha_{1}^{4} \ h^{4} \\ &+ \frac{1}{8} < f_{xx}f^{2} > \alpha_{1}^{4} \ h^{4} + \frac{1}{120} \ D^{5}(f) \ \alpha_{1}^{5} \ h^{5} + \frac{1}{12} \{D^{3}(f_{x})f\} \ \alpha_{1}^{5} \ h^{5} \\ &+ \frac{1}{8} < D(f_{xx}) \ f^{2} > \alpha_{1}^{5} \ h^{5} + \frac{1}{720} \ D^{6}(f) \ \alpha_{1}^{6} \ h^{6} + \frac{1}{48} \{D^{4}(f_{x})f\} \ \alpha_{1}^{6} \ h^{6} \\ &+ \frac{1}{16} < D^{2}(f_{xx})f^{2} > \alpha_{1}^{6} \ h^{6} + \frac{1}{48} < f_{xxx}f^{3} > \alpha_{1}^{6} \ h^{6} + \frac{1}{5040} \ D^{7}(f) \ \alpha_{1}^{7} \ h^{7} \\ &+ \frac{1}{240} \{D^{5}(f_{x})f\} \ \alpha_{1}^{7} \ h^{7} + \frac{1}{48} < D^{3}(f_{xx})f^{2} > \alpha_{1}^{7} \ h^{7} + \frac{1}{48} < D(f_{xxx})f^{3} > \alpha_{1}^{7} \ h^{7} \end{split}$$

$$+\frac{1}{40320} D^{8}(f) \alpha_{1}^{8} h^{8} + \frac{1}{1440} \{D^{6}(f_{X})f\} \alpha_{1}^{8} h^{8} + \frac{1}{192} \langle D^{4}(f_{XX})f^{2} \rangle \alpha_{1}^{8} h^{8}$$

$$+\frac{1}{96} \langle D^{2}(f_{XXX})f^{8} \rangle \alpha_{1}^{8} h^{8} + \frac{1}{384} \langle f_{XXXX}f^{4} \rangle \alpha_{1}^{8} h^{8}$$

$$(14)$$

$$(con.)$$

Because of (4), we replaced in (14) the coefficient γ_{10} by $\frac{1}{2}\alpha_1^2$. Using (4), we similarly eliminated $\gamma_{\nu 0}$ ($\nu = 2, 3, \ldots$) in the following expansions for f_2 f_3 We now list the expansion for f_2 . It consists of similar terms as (14) which are obtained from (14) replacing α_1 by α_2 and of additional terms. We list only these additional terms:

$$\begin{split} &\mathbf{f}_{2} = \ldots + \left\{ \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}} \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}) \; \mathbf{h}^{3} + \left\{ \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \; \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; \alpha_{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}) \; \mathbf{h}^{4} \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}} \; \mathsf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{2}) \; \mathbf{h}^{4} + \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}} \left\{ \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{f}} \right\} \right\} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{2}) \; \mathbf{h}^{4} \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \mathsf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \; \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; \alpha_{2}^{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}) \; \mathbf{h}^{5} + \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \; \mathsf{D}^{2} \; (\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; \alpha_{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{2}) \; \mathbf{h}^{5} \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \; \left\{ \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{f}} \right\} \right\} \; \alpha_{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{2}) \; \mathbf{h}^{5} + \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \mathsf{f}_{\mathbf{X}} \; \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; \alpha_{2}^{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}) \; \mathbf{h}^{5} \\ &+ \frac{1}{6} \left\{ \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}} \; \mathsf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{3}) \; \mathbf{h}^{5} + \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \mathsf{f}_{\mathbf{X}} \left\{ \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \right\} \right\} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{3}) \; \mathbf{h}^{5} \\ &+ \frac{1}{6} \left\{ \mathsf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \; \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; \alpha_{2}^{3} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}) \; \mathbf{h}^{6} + \frac{1}{4} \left\{ \mathsf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \; \mathsf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; \alpha_{2}^{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{2}) \; \mathbf{h}^{6} \\ &+ \frac{1}{4} \left\{ \mathsf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \; \left\{ \mathsf{f}_{\mathbf{X}} \right\} \right\} \; \alpha_{2}^{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{3}) \; \mathbf{h}^{6} + \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \; \left\{ \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \right\} \right\} \; \alpha_{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{3}) \; \mathbf{h}^{6} \\ &+ \frac{1}{4} \left\{ \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \; \mathsf{D}^{3}(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; \alpha_{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{3}) \; \mathbf{h}^{6} + \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \; \left\{ \mathsf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{X}}) \right\} \right\} \; \alpha_{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{3}) \; \mathbf{h}^{6} \\ &+ \frac{1}{4} \left\{ \mathsf{F}_{\mathbf{X}} \right\} \; \mathsf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; \alpha_{2}^{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{3}) \; \mathbf{h}^{6} + \frac{1}{4} \left\{ \mathsf{F}_{\mathbf{X}} \right\} \; \left\{ \mathsf{F}_{\mathbf{X}} \right\} \; \alpha_{2}^{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{3}) \; \mathbf{h}^{6} \\ &+ \frac{1}{4} \left\{ \mathsf{F}_{\mathbf{X}} \right\} \; \mathsf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; \alpha_{2}^{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{3}) \; \mathbf{h}^{6} + \frac{1}{4} \left\{ \mathsf{F}_{\mathbf{X}} \right\} \; \left\{ \mathsf{F}_{\mathbf{X}} \right\} \; \alpha_{2}^{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{3}) \; \mathbf{h}^{6} \\ &+ \frac{1}{4} \left\{ \mathsf{F}_{\mathbf{X}} \right\} \; \mathsf{D}^{2}(\mathbf{f}) \right\} \; \alpha_{2}^{2} \; (\gamma_{21} \; \alpha_{1}^{3}) \; \mathbf{h}^{6} + \frac{1}{4} \left\{ \mathsf{F}_{\mathbf{X}} \right\} \; \left\{ \mathsf{F}_{\mathbf{X}} \right\} \; \left\{ \mathsf{F}_{\mathbf{X}} \right\} \; \alpha_{2}^{2} \; \left\{ \mathsf{F}_{\mathbf{X}} \right\} \; \alpha$$

(15) (con.)

 $\begin{array}{c} (15) \\ (con. \end{array}$

$$+ \frac{1}{8} \langle f_{xx} [D^{2}(f)]^{2} \rangle (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2})^{2} h^{8} + \frac{1}{4} \langle f_{xx} D^{2}(f) \{ f_{x} f \} \rangle (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2})^{2} h^{8}$$

$$+ \frac{1}{8} \langle f_{xx} \{ f_{x} f \}^{2} \rangle (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2})^{2} h^{8} + \frac{1}{720} \{ f_{x} D^{6}(f) \} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{6}) h^{8}$$

$$+ \frac{1}{48} \{ f_{x} \{ D^{4}(f_{x}) f \} \} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{6}) h^{8} + \frac{1}{16} \{ f_{x} \langle D^{2}(f_{xx}) f^{2} \rangle \} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{6}) h^{8}$$

$$+ \frac{1}{48} \{ f_{x} \langle f_{xxx} f^{3} \rangle \} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{6}) h^{8}$$

$$+ \frac{1}{48} \{ f_{x} \langle f_{xxx} f^{3} \rangle \} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{6}) h^{8}$$

Next, we list the expansion of f_3 . This expansion consists of terms similar to those of (14); these terms are obtained replacing α_1 by α_3 in (14). Furthermore, f_3 contains terms similar to those of (15); these terms are obtained replacing in (15) α_2^{ν} by α_3^{ν} and $(\gamma_{21} \alpha_1^{\nu})$ by $(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^{\nu} + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^{\nu})$. Finally, f_3 contains additional terms which do not appear in (14) or (15). We now list these additional terms of f_3 :

$$\begin{split} & I_{3} + \ldots + \{f_{X}\{f_{X}|D(f)\}\} \gamma_{32} |(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})h^{5} + \{D(f_{X})\{f_{X}|D(f)\}\} |\alpha_{3} + \gamma_{32}|(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})|h^{6} \\ & + \{f_{X}\{D(f_{X})|D(f)\}\} \gamma_{32}|\alpha_{2}|(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})h^{6} + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X}\{f_{X}|D^{2}(f)\}\} \gamma_{32}|(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{6} \\ & + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X}\{f_{X}\{f_{X}^{*}\}\}\} \gamma_{32}|(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{6} + \frac{1}{2}\{D^{2}(f_{X})|\{f_{X}|D(f)\}\} |\alpha_{3}^{2} + \gamma_{32}|(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})h^{7} \\ & + \{D(f_{X})|\{D(f_{X})|D(f)\}\} \alpha_{3} + \gamma_{32}|\alpha_{2}|(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})h^{7} \\ & + \frac{1}{2}\{D(f_{X})|\{f_{X}|D^{2}(f)\}\} |\alpha_{3} + \gamma_{32}|(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{7} \\ & + \frac{1}{2}\{D(f_{X})|\{f_{X}|f_{X}^{*}\}\}\} |\alpha_{3} + \gamma_{32}|(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{7} \\ & + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X}\{D^{2}(f_{X})|D(f)\}\} |\alpha_{3}^{2} + \gamma_{32}|(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})h^{7} \\ & + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X}\{D^{2}(f_{X})|D(f)\}\} |\gamma_{32}|\alpha_{2}^{2}(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})h^{7} + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X}\{D(f_{X})|D^{2}(f)\}\} |(\gamma_{32}|\alpha_{2})|(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1}^{2})|h^{7} \\ & + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X}\{D^{2}(f_{X})|D(f)\}\} |\gamma_{32}|\alpha_{2}^{2}(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})|h^{7} + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X}\{D(f_{X})|D^{2}(f)\}\} |\gamma_{32}|\alpha_{2}^{2}(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})|h^{7} \\ & + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X}\{D^{2}(f_{X})|D(f)\}\} |\gamma_{32}|\alpha_{2}^{2}(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})|h^{7} + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X}\{D(f_{X})|D^{2}(f)\}\} |\gamma_{32}|\alpha_{2}^{2}(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})|h^{7} \\ & + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X}\{D^{2}(f_{X})|D(f)\} |\gamma_{32}|\alpha_{2}^{2}(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})|h^{7} \\ & + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X}\{D^{2}(f_{X})|D(f)\} |\gamma_{32}|\alpha_{2}^{2}(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})|h^{7} \\ & + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X}\{D^{2}(f_{X})|D(f)\} |\gamma_{32}|\alpha_{1}^{2}(\gamma_{21}|\alpha_{1})|h^{7} \\ & + \frac{1}{2}\{f_{X$$

 $+\frac{1}{2}\left\{f_{X}\left\{D(f_{X})\left\{f_{X}^{f}\right\}\right\}\right\}\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{7}+\frac{1}{2}\left\{f_{X}\left\langle f_{XX}^{f}D(f)\right\rangle\right\}(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2})(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1})h^{7}$ $+\frac{1}{6}\left\{f_{\mathbf{x}}\left\{f_{\mathbf{y}}\left\{f_{\mathbf{y}}D^{3}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\gamma_{32}\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{3}\right)h^{7}+\frac{1}{2}\left\{f_{\mathbf{x}}\left\{f_{\mathbf{x}}\left\{D\left(f_{\mathbf{x}}\right)f\right\}\right\}\right\}\gamma_{32}\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{3}\right)h^{7}\right\}$ $+\frac{1}{6}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{3}(f_{X}^{})D(f)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{3}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)\right\}\right\}\left(\gamma_{32}\alpha_{1}^{2}\right)h^{8}+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{X}^{}\left\{D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)D^{2}\left(f_{X}^{}\right)\right\}\right\}$ $+\,\frac{1}{4}\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\{\,\mathbf{D^{2}}\,\,(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}f\}\}\}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2}^{2})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1}^{2})\,\mathbf{h^{8}}\,+\,\frac{1}{2}\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,\langle\mathbf{D}(f_{_{\mathbf{XX}}})f\,\,\mathbf{D}(f)\,\rangle\,\}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2}^{3})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1})\,\mathbf{h^{8}}\,+\,\frac{1}{2}\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,\langle\mathbf{D}(f_{_{\mathbf{XX}}})f\,\,\mathbf{D}(f)\,\rangle\,\}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2}^{3})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1})\,\mathbf{h^{8}}\,+\,\frac{1}{2}\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,\langle\mathbf{D}(f_{_{\mathbf{XX}}})f\,\,\mathbf{D}(f)\,\rangle\,\}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2}^{3})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1})\,\mathbf{h^{8}}\,+\,\frac{1}{2}\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,\langle\mathbf{D}(f_{_{\mathbf{XX}}})f\,\,\mathbf{D}(f)\,\rangle\,\}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2}^{3})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1})\,\mathbf{h^{8}}\,+\,\frac{1}{2}\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,\langle\mathbf{D}(f_{_{\mathbf{XX}}})f\,\,\mathbf{D}(f)\,\rangle\,\}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2}^{3})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1})\,\mathbf{h^{8}}\,+\,\frac{1}{2}\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,\langle\mathbf{D}(f_{_{\mathbf{XX}}})f\,\,\mathbf{D}(f)\,\rangle\,\}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2}^{3})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1})\,\mathbf{h^{8}}\,+\,\frac{1}{2}\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,\langle\mathbf{D}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})f\,\,\mathbf{D}(f)\,\rangle\,\}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2}^{3})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1})\,\mathbf{h^{8}}\,+\,\frac{1}{2}\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,\langle\mathbf{D}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})f\,\,\mathbf{D}(f)\,\rangle\,\}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2}^{3})\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2}^{3})\,\,(\gamma$ $+\,\frac{1}{6}\left\{\mathbf{f}_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\left\{\,\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\,\,\mathbf{D^{3}}(\mathbf{f})\right\}\right\}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1}^{3})\mathbf{h}^{8}\,\,+\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{\,\mathbf{f}_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\left\{\,\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\mathbf{f}\right\}\right\}\right\}\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1}^{3})\mathbf{h}^{8}\,\,+\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{\,\mathbf{f}_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\left\{\,\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,\mathbf{D}(\mathbf{f}_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\mathbf{f}\right\}\right\}\right\}$ $+\,\frac{1}{4}\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}} < f_{_{\mathbf{X}\mathbf{X}}}f\,\,D^{2}(f)\!>\,\}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2}^{2})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1}^{2})\,h^{8}\,+\,\frac{1}{4}\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}} < f_{_{\mathbf{X}\mathbf{X}}}f\,\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}f\!>\,\}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2}^{2})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1}^{2})\,h^{8}$ $+\frac{1}{2}\left\{f_{X} < f_{XX} \left[D(f)\right]^{2} > \right\} \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1})^{2}h^{8} + \frac{1}{24}\left\{f_{X} \left\{f_{X} D^{4}(f)\right\}\right\} \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{4})h^{8}$ $+\frac{1}{4}\left\{f_{\mathbf{x}}\left\{f_{\mathbf{x}}\left\{\left[D^{2}\left(f_{\mathbf{x}}\right)f\right\}\right\}\right\} \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{4})h^{8}+\frac{1}{8}\left\{f_{\mathbf{x}}\left\{f_{\mathbf{x}}\left\{f_{\mathbf{x}}\left\{f_{\mathbf{x}}\right\}\right\}\right\}\right\} \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{4})h^{8}\right\}$ $+\frac{1}{2} < f_{yy} f \{ D(f_y) D(f) \} > \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{32} \alpha_2) (\gamma_{21} \alpha_1) h^8$ $+\frac{1}{4} \left< f_{xx} f \left\{ f_{x} D^{2}(f) \right\} \right> \alpha_{3}^{2} \cdot \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2}) h^{8} + \frac{1}{4} \left< f_{xx} f \left\{ f_{x} \{ f_{x} f \} \right\} \right> \alpha_{3}^{2} \cdot \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2}) h^{8}$ $+\;\frac{1}{2}\left\{\,\mathrm{D}\left(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\right)\;\left\{\,\mathrm{D}^{\!2}\left(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\right)\;\mathrm{D}(f)\right\}\right\}\;\alpha_{3}\;\left(\gamma_{32}\;\alpha_{2}^{2}\right)\;\left(\gamma_{21}\;\alpha_{1}\right)h^{3}$ $+ \frac{1}{2} \left\{ D(f_{X}) \left\{ D(f_{X}) D^{2}(f) \right\} \right\} \alpha_{3} (\gamma_{32} \alpha_{2}) (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2}) h^{8}$ $+\frac{1}{2}\{D(f_{v})\{D(f_{v})\{f_{v}f\}\}\} \alpha_{3} (\gamma_{32} \alpha_{2}) (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2})h^{8}$ $+ \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \text{ D(f}_{\mathbf{x}}) \left\langle f_{\mathbf{x}\mathbf{x}} f \text{ D(f)} \right\rangle \right\} \alpha_3 (\gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) (\gamma_{21} \alpha_1) h^8$ $+\,\frac{1}{6}\,\big\{\,D(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\,\big\{f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,D^{3}(f)\big\}\big\}\,\,\alpha_{3}\,\,\cdot\,\,\gamma_{32}\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1}^{3})\,h^{8}\,+\,\frac{1}{2}\big\{\,D(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\big\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\big\{\,D(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})f\big\}\big\}\big\}\,\,\alpha_{3}\,\,\cdot\,\,\gamma_{32}\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\,\alpha_{1}^{3})\,h^{8}$ $+\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,D(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\,D(f)\right\}\right\}\,\,\alpha_{3}^{2}\,\,(\gamma_{32}\,\,\alpha_{2})\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\alpha_{1})h^{8}\\ +\,\frac{1}{4}\left\{\,D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,D^{2}(f)\right\}\right\}\,\,\alpha_{3}^{2}\,\cdot\,\gamma_{32}\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{8}\\ +\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,D^{2}(f)\right\}\right\}\,\,\alpha_{3}^{2}\,\cdot\,\gamma_{32}\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{8}\\ +\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,D^{2}(f)\right\}\right\}\,\,\alpha_{3}^{2}\,\cdot\,\gamma_{32}\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{8}\\ +\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,D^{2}(f)\right\}\right\}\,\,\alpha_{3}^{2}\,\cdot\,\gamma_{32}\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{8}\\ +\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,D^{2}(f)\right\}\right\}\,\,\alpha_{3}^{2}\,\,\alpha_{32}\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{8}\\ +\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,D^{2}(f)\right\}\right\}\,\,\alpha_{3}^{2}\,\,\alpha_{32}\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{8}\\ +\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,D^{2}(f)\right\}\right\}\,\,\alpha_{3}^{2}\,\,\alpha_{32}\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{8}\\ +\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,D^{2}(f)\right\}\right\}\,\,\alpha_{3}^{2}\,\,\alpha_{32}\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{8}\\ +\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,D^{2}(f)\right\}\right\}\,\,\alpha_{3}^{2}\,\,\alpha_{32}\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{8}\\ +\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,D^{2}(f)\right\}\right\}\,\,\alpha_{3}^{2}\,\,\alpha_{32}\,\,(\gamma_{21}\,\alpha_{1}^{2})h^{8}\\ +\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,\,D^{2}(f)\right\}\right\}\,\,\alpha_{3}^{2}\,\,\alpha_{32}^{2}\,\,\alpha_{1}^{2}\\ +\,\frac{1}{2}\left\{D^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,\left\{\,f_{_{\mathbf{X}}}\,B^{2}(f_{_{\mathbf{X}}})\,B^{2}(f_{_{$

(con.)

$$+\frac{1}{4} \left\{ D^{2}(f_{X}) \left\{ f_{X} \left\{ f_{X} f \right\} \right\} \right\} \alpha_{3}^{2} \cdot \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2}) h^{8}$$

$$+\frac{1}{2} \left\langle D(f_{XX}) f \left\{ f_{X} D(f) \right\} \right\rangle \alpha_{3}^{3} \cdot \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}) h^{8}$$

$$+\frac{1}{6} \left\{ D^{3}(f_{X}) \left\{ f_{X} D(f) \right\} \right\} \alpha_{3}^{3} \cdot \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}) h^{8}$$

$$(16)$$

$$(con.)$$

Finally, we list the additional terms for f_4 :

$$f_{4} = \dots + \{f_{X} \{f_{X} \{f_{X} D(f)\}\}\} \gamma_{43} \cdot \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}) h^{7}$$

$$+ \{f_{X} \{D(f_{X}) \{f_{X} D(f)\}\}\} (\gamma_{43} \alpha_{3}) \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}) h^{8}$$

$$+ \{f_{X} \{f_{X} \{D(f_{X}) D(f)\}\}\} \gamma_{43} (\gamma_{32} \alpha_{2}) (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}) h^{8}$$

$$+ \frac{1}{2} \{f_{X} \{f_{X} \{f_{X} D^{2}(f)\}\}\} \gamma_{43} \cdot \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2}) h^{8}$$

$$+ \frac{1}{2} \{f_{X} \{f_{X} \{f_{X} \{f_{X} \{f_{X} f\}\}\}\} \gamma_{43} \cdot \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2}) h^{8}$$

$$+ \{D(f_{X}) \{f_{X} \{f_{X} D(f)\}\}\} \alpha_{4} \gamma_{43} \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}) h^{8}$$

When proceeding to f_5, \ldots , no more additional new terms for h^8 or lower powers of h are obtained.

Formulas corresponding to (14), (15), (16), and (17) hold for g_1 , g_2 , g_3 , g_4 . In all these formulas, all functions on the right-hand side are to be taken for $t = t_0$.

7. Introducing the expressions for f₁, f₂, ... into (5) and comparing the resulting expansion (5) term by term with the expansion (8), using the values (13) for the total derivatives in (8), we obtain the equations of condition for the Runge-Kutta-Nyström coefficients as listed in Table 1.

^{1.} All tables are at the end of this report.

The left-hand part of Table 1 represents the equations of condition for x, y as obtained from the expansions of (3) and the first (or first two) equations (5); the right-hand part of Table 1 states the equations of condition for \dot{x} , \dot{y} , as obtained from the expansion of (3) and the last equation (5). For the right-hand part of Table 1, the weight factors c of the table are to be replaced by the weight factors \dot{c} of the first derivatives \dot{x} , \dot{y} . In the marginal columns of Table 1, one finds listed the h-power of the corresponding term in the Taylor expansions for x, y (left-hand side) or \dot{x} , \dot{y} (right-hand side). These terms are listed in the same order as in equations (13). Some of the equations of condition of Table 1 are duplicates or multiples of other ones and are marked by an asterisk (*). When we consider the leading term of the local truncation error, these duplicates must also be taken into account.

Later in this paper, we will refer to the equations of Table 1 by a Roman numeral (I through X), indicating the h-power (left or right marginal column in Table 1) to which the equation belongs and by an Arabic numeral indicating its position in the block of the equations of the h-power under consideration. For example, the last equation in Table 1 should be referred to as (X, 72) or, if considered as an equation with the weight factors \dot{c}_{κ} , as $(IX, 72)^{*}$.

Equations (X, 1) through (X, 72) of Table 1 are required only as equations (IX, 1) through (IX, 72) for the local truncation error in \dot{x} , \dot{y} .

8. We reduce the equations of condition of Table 1 by omitting the duplicate or multiple equations (*) and by introducing, in addition to (6) and (7), the following assumptions:

$$c_{1} = \hat{c}_{1} = \dot{c}_{1} = 0, \quad c_{2} = \hat{c}_{2} = \dot{c}_{2} = 0, \quad c_{3} = \hat{c}_{3} = 0, \quad \alpha_{10} = \alpha_{11} = 1.$$

$$\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1} = \frac{1}{6} \alpha_{2}^{3}$$

$$\gamma_{31} \alpha_{1} + \gamma_{32} \alpha_{2} = \frac{1}{6} \alpha_{3}^{3}$$

$$\gamma_{41} \alpha_{1} + \gamma_{42} \alpha_{2} + \gamma_{43} \alpha_{3} = \frac{1}{6} \alpha_{4}^{3}$$

$$\vdots$$

$$\vdots$$

$$\gamma_{111} \alpha_{1} + \gamma_{112} \alpha_{2} + \gamma_{113} \alpha_{3} + \dots + \gamma_{1110} \alpha_{10} = \frac{1}{6} \alpha_{11}^{3}$$

$$(19)$$

$$\gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2} = \frac{1}{12} \alpha_{2}^{4}$$

$$\gamma_{31} \alpha_{1}^{2} + \gamma_{32} \alpha_{2}^{2} = \frac{1}{12} \alpha_{3}^{4}$$

$$\gamma_{41} \alpha_{1}^{2} + \gamma_{42} \alpha_{2}^{2} + \gamma_{43} \alpha_{3}^{2} = \frac{1}{12} \alpha_{4}^{4}$$

$$\vdots$$

$$\gamma_{111} \alpha_{1}^{2} + \gamma_{42} \alpha_{2}^{2} + \gamma_{43} \alpha_{3}^{2} = \frac{1}{12} \alpha_{4}^{4}$$

$$\vdots$$

$$\gamma_{111} \alpha_{1}^{2} + \gamma_{112} \alpha_{2}^{2} + \gamma_{113} \alpha_{3}^{2} + \dots + \gamma_{1110} \alpha_{10}^{2} = \frac{1}{12} \alpha_{11}^{4}$$

$$\gamma_{41} \alpha_{1}^{3} + \gamma_{42} \alpha_{2}^{3} + \gamma_{43} \alpha_{3}^{3} = \frac{1}{20} \alpha_{4}^{5}$$

$$\gamma_{51} \alpha_{1}^{3} + \gamma_{52} \alpha_{2}^{2} + \gamma_{53} \alpha_{3}^{3} + \gamma_{54} \alpha_{4}^{3} = \frac{1}{20} \alpha_{5}^{5}$$

$$\vdots$$

$$\gamma_{111} \alpha_{1}^{3} + \gamma_{112} \alpha_{2}^{3} + \gamma_{113} \alpha_{3}^{3} + \dots + \gamma_{1110} \alpha_{10}^{3} = \frac{1}{20} \alpha_{11}^{5}$$

$$c_{4} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \begin{cases} \gamma_{101} \\ \gamma_{111} \end{cases} = 0$$

$$c_{4} \alpha_{4} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \alpha_{5} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \alpha_{9} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \begin{cases} \gamma_{101} \\ \gamma_{111} \end{cases} = 0$$

$$c_{4} \alpha_{4} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \alpha_{5} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \alpha_{9} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \gamma_{101} = 0$$

$$c_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \alpha_{5}^{2} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \alpha_{9}^{2} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \gamma_{101} = 0$$

$$c_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \alpha_{5}^{2} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \alpha_{9}^{2} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \gamma_{101} = 0$$

$$c_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \alpha_{5}^{2} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \alpha_{9}^{2} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \gamma_{101} = 0$$

$$c_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \alpha_{5}^{2} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \alpha_{9}^{2} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \gamma_{101} = 0$$

$$c_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \alpha_{5}^{2} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \alpha_{9}^{2} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \gamma_{101} = 0$$

$$c_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \alpha_{5}^{2} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \alpha_{9}^{2} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \gamma_{101} = 0$$

$$c_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \alpha_{5}^{2} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \alpha_{9}^{2} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \gamma_{101} = 0$$

$$c_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \alpha_{5}^{2} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \alpha_{9}^{2} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \gamma_{101} = 0$$

$$c_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \alpha_{5}^{2} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \alpha_{9}^{2} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \gamma_{101} = 0$$

$$c_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} \gamma_{41} + c_{5} \alpha_{5}^{2} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9} \alpha_{9}^{2} \gamma_{91} + c_{10} \gamma_{101} = 0$$

$$c_{5} \alpha_{4}^{2} \gamma_{41} + c_{5}^{2} \gamma_{51} + \dots + c_{9}^{2} \alpha_{9$$

$$\begin{vmatrix}
c_4 & \gamma_{43} + c_5 & \gamma_{53} + \dots + c_9 & \gamma_{93} + c_{10} & \gamma_{113} = 0 \\
\dot{c}_4 & \gamma_{43} + \dot{c}_5 & \gamma_{53} + \dots + \dot{c}_9 & \gamma_{93} + \dot{c}_{10} & \gamma_{103} = 0
\end{vmatrix}$$
(26)

In the first equations (22) and (23), the upper line (γ_{101}) holds for the eighth-order formula and the lower line (γ_{111}) for the ninth-order formula. Introducing these assumptions, we convert the necessary and sufficient equations of condition of Table 1 into a system of sufficient equations of condition that can be solved in a relatively easy manner. In fact, these assumptions transform the equations of Table 1 into several separate systems of linear equations for the coefficients $\gamma_{_{K}\lambda}$.

Let us now consider the reductions of the equations of Table 1 effected by the above assumptions. Assumptions (19) — together with the first equation (18) — lead to the following identities in Table 1:

$$(V, 3) \equiv (V, 1), (VI, 4) \equiv (VI, 1), (VII, 4) \equiv (VII, 1)$$

 $(VIII, 4) \equiv (VIII, 1), (VIII, 9) \equiv (VIII, 1), (IX, 4) \equiv (IX, 1)$
 $(IX, 10) \equiv (IX, 1), (X, 4) \equiv (X, 1), (X, 11) \equiv (X, 1)$
 $(X, 35) \equiv (X, 16), (X, 61) \equiv (X, 56)$.

Because of the identities (28) the equations (V, 3), (VI, 4), (VII, 4), (VIII, 4), (VIII, 9), (IX, 4), (IX, 10), (X, 4), (X, 11), (X, 35), (X, 61), and the corresponding equations in $\dot{c}_{_K}$ can be omitted from Table 1.

Assumptions (20) — together with (19) and the first equation (18) — yield the following identities in Table 1:

$$(VI, 5) \equiv (VI, 1), (VII, 6) \equiv (VII, 1), (VIII, 7) \equiv (VIII, 1),$$

$$(VIII, 19) \equiv (VIII, 18), (IX, 7) \equiv (IX, 1), (IX, 16) \equiv (IX, 1)$$

$$(IX, 25) \equiv (IX, 24), (IX, 32) \equiv (IX, 30), (X, 7) \equiv (X, 1),$$

$$(X, 20) \equiv (X, 1), (X, 29) \equiv (X, 28), (X, 33) \equiv (X, 1)$$

$$(X, 48) \equiv (X, 47), (X, 59) \equiv (X, 58), (X, 71) \equiv (X, 70),$$

eliminating equations (VI, 5), (VII, 6), (VIII, 7), (VIII, 19), (IX, 7), (IX, 16), (IX, 25), (IX, 32), (X, 7), (X, 20), (X, 29), (X, 33), (X, 48), (X, 59), and (X, 71) from Table 1.

Assumptions (21), together with (19) and the first equation (18), lead to the following identities:

$$(VII, 8) \equiv (VII, 1), (VIII, 12) \equiv (VIII, 1), (IX, 13) \equiv (IX, 1),$$

$$(X, 14) \equiv (X, 1), (X, 31) \equiv (X, 1),$$

$$(30)$$

thereby eliminating equations (VII, 8), (VIII, 12), (IX, 13), (X, 14) and (X, 31) from Table 1.

Because of (7) and the first equations (18) and (22):

$$\gamma_{111} = \gamma_{101} = 0 \tag{31}$$

Similarly because of (7) and (18):

$$\gamma_{112} = 0, \ \gamma_{113} = 0. \tag{32}$$

Therefore, we can omit the last term on the left-hand side of (22), (23), and (24) and of the first equations (25) and (26). We can also omit the last term on the left-hand side of the first equation (27) since (7) and the first equation (22) hold.

From (22) and the previous assumptions, the following identities result:

$$(VII, 10) \equiv (VII, 8), (VIII, 18) \equiv (VIII, 16),$$

 $(IX, 30) \equiv (IX, 27), (X, 56) \equiv (X, 53),$

$$(33)$$

eliminating equations (VII, 10), (VIII, 18), (IX, 30), and (X, 56), from Table 1.

Assumption (23) and previous assumptions lead to:

$$(VIII, 14) \equiv (VIII, 12), (IX, 24) \equiv (IX, 21), (X, 46) \equiv (X, 43), (34)$$

eliminating equations (VIII, 14), (IX, 24), and (X, 46) from Table 1.

By (24) and previous assumptions equations (IX, 15) and (X, 28) are eliminated from Table 1 since they then become identical with (IX, 1) and (X, 25), respectively.

Finally, assumptions (25) and (26), together with previous assumptions, lead to the identity:

$$(IX, 34) \equiv (IX, 27), (X, 64) \equiv (X, 53),$$
 (35)

and assumption (27), together with previous assumptions, to:

$$(IX, 36) \equiv (IX, 27), (X, 66) \equiv (X, 53), (X, 70) \equiv (X, 67),$$
 (36)

thus eliminating equations (IX, 34) (IX, 36), (X, 64), (X, 66), and (X, 70) from Table 1.

Omitting in Table 1 all equations which are duplicates or multiples of other ones or which can be eliminated by using the above assumptions, the table reduces to the following equations:(II, 1), (III, 1), (IV, 1), (V, 1), (VI, 1), (VII, 1), (VIII, 1), (VIII, 1), (VIII, 15), (IX, 21), (IX, 27), which are listed in this order in Table 2. To write the last three equations in a more concise form, we introduced in Table 2 the abbreviation:

$$\gamma_{\mu 1} \alpha_{1}^{\nu} + \gamma_{\mu 2} \alpha_{2}^{\nu} + \ldots + \gamma_{\mu, \mu - 1} \alpha_{\mu - 1}^{\nu} = P_{\mu \nu}$$
 (37)

The remaining equations in Table 1 which belong to ninth-order terms for \dot{x} will be considered later when dealing with the local truncation errors in x and \dot{x} .

In the ninth equation of Table 2, the upper line (P_{104}) holds for the eighth-order formula and the lower line $(\frac{1}{30})$ for the ninth-order formula. From the two lines of this equation, it follows that

$$P_{104} = \frac{1}{30}$$

must hold.

The equations of Table 2 have to be solved together with the assumptions (19) through (27).

9. The first eight equations of Table 2 do not contain the coefficients $\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$. They represent linear equations for the weight factors \mathbf{c}_{κ} or $\dot{\mathbf{c}}_{\kappa}$. By solving these equations, we can express the weight factors by the α_{κ} 's.

Next, we have to solve for the coefficients $\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$. Obviously, equations (22), (23), (24), and (27) are satisfied by

$$\gamma_{41} = \gamma_{51} = \gamma_{61} = \gamma_{71} = \gamma_{81} = \gamma_{91} = \gamma_{101} = \gamma_{111} = 0.$$
 (38)

The first equation (19) together with the first equation (20) leads to a restrictive condition for α_1 :

$$\alpha_1 = \frac{1}{2} \quad \alpha_2. \tag{39}$$

Similarly, the third equation (19), together with the third equation (20) and the first equation (21), yields because of $\gamma_{41} = 0$, the following restrictive condition for α_2 :

$$\alpha_2 = \frac{1}{5} \alpha_4 \frac{5\alpha_3 - 3\alpha_4}{2\alpha_3 - \alpha_4} . \tag{40}$$

The remaining α_{κ} 's may be chosen arbitrarily. We tried to select these α_{κ} -values in such a way that the leading term of the truncation error becomes small for our Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula.

The remaining coefficients $\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$ can easily be determined as follows: The first equation (19) yields γ_{21} ; the second equation (19) and the second equation (20) determine γ_{31} and γ_{32} . Since γ_{41} = 0, from the third equation (19) and the third equation (20) the coefficients γ_{42} and γ_{43} can be obtained. Because of γ_{51} = 0 we can obtain the coefficients γ_{52} , γ_{53} , and γ_{54} from the fourth equation (19), the fourth equation (20), and the second equation (21).

From the ninth and the tenth equations of Table 2, we can determine P_{64} , P_{74} , P_{84} , and P_{94} , since these equations are four linear equations for these quantities (P_{44} , P_{54} being known already).

The fifth equation (19), the fifth equation (20), the third equation (21), and P_{64} , together with γ_{61} = 0, yield the coefficients γ_{62} , γ_{63} , γ_{64} , and γ_{65} .

Since we have more coefficients $\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$ than equations of condition, we may set some of these coefficients equal to zero:

$$\gamma_{72} = \gamma_{82} = \gamma_{83} = \gamma_{104} = 0. \tag{41}$$

The coefficients γ_{73} , γ_{74} , γ_{75} , γ_{76} can then be obtained from the sixth equation (19), the sixth equation (20), the fourth equation (21), and P_{74} . Similarly, γ_{84} , γ_{85} , γ_{86} , and γ_{87} are determined by the seventh equation (19), the seventh equation (20), the fifth equation (21), and P_{84} .

Next, we use the first equation (25) and the first equation (26) to find γ_{92} and γ_{93} . The first line of the last equation in Table 2 yields P_{s5} . This value P_{95} , together with P_{94} , the eighth equation (19), the eighth equation (20), and the sixth equation (21), determines the coefficients γ_{94} , γ_{95} , γ_{96} , γ_{97} , and γ_{98} . Similarly, we use the second equations (25) and (26) to compute γ_{102} and γ_{103} . From the second line of the last equation in Table 2 we find P_{105} . Since $\gamma_{104}=0$, we can determine the remaining coefficients

 γ_{105} , γ_{106} , γ_{107} , γ_{108} , and γ_{109} from P_{105} , $P_{104} (=\frac{1}{30})$, the ninth equation (19), the ninth equation (20), and the seventh equation (21).

This concludes the computation of the coefficients $\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$ since $\gamma_{11\lambda}$ (λ = 0, 1, 2, ..., 10) is given by (7), and $\gamma_{\kappa 0}$ (κ = 1, 2, ..., 11) can be determined from (4).

10. Table 3 lists the coefficients of an eighth-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula RKN 8(9). The expression TE in Table 3 represents the leading term of the local truncation error in x for our eighth-order formula and is obtained as difference between the first and the second formula (5).

In Table 4, the error coefficients for the leading truncation error term and x and \dot{x} are listed. If the error coefficients differ by a constant numerical factor only, the coefficient with the largest factor is listed. The product of the error coefficient and the corresponding expression in the partial derivatives, as listed in (13), times h^9 is the actual contribution to the leading truncation error term.

Because of $P_{104} = \frac{1}{30}$, the tenth equation of Table 2 holds also for the eighth-order formula RKN 8, so that this equation does not contribute to the leading truncation error term in x. The only contributing equation of Table 2 is the last one [equation (IX, 27) of Table 1]. Replacing equation (IX, 27) by equation (IX, 29), because of the larger factor of the latter one, the error coefficient that determines the contribution to the leading truncation error term in x reads:

$$T_{29} = \frac{1}{8} \left(c_4 P_{45} + c_5 P_{55} + \dots + c_9 P_{95} + c_{10} P_{105} \right) - \frac{15}{362 880}$$
 (42)

In the case of \dot{x} , there are seven essentially different error coefficients that contribute to the leading truncation error term: \dot{T}_{10} , \dot{T}_{26} , \dot{T}_{45} , \dot{T}_{51} , \dot{T}_{52} , \dot{T}_{58} , and \dot{T}_{68} .

It is essential that the error coefficients in \dot{x} are of about the same order of magnitude as the error coefficients in x. If the error coefficients in \dot{x} are large compared with the error coefficients in x, large truncation errors in \dot{x} might be generated since in our method the integration stepsize is determined by the local truncation error in x (by TE $_x$).

SECTION II. SEVENTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 7(8)

11. The derivation of a seventh-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula RKN 7(8) closely follows the same pattern as in the case of our eighth-order formula RKN 8(9) of Section I. Naturally, a seventh-order formula requires fewer evaluations of the differential equations per step than an eighth-order formula. We shall present in the following a seventh-order formula based on nine evaluations per step, a tenth evaluation being taken over as first evaluation for the next step.

In the case of a seventh-order formula, equations (3), (5), and (6) must then be replaced by:

$$f_{0} = f(t_{0}, x_{0}, y_{0})$$

$$f_{\kappa} = f\left(t_{0} + \alpha_{\kappa}h, x_{0} + \dot{x}_{0}\alpha_{\kappa}h + h^{2}. \sum_{\lambda=0}^{\kappa-1} \gamma_{\kappa\lambda}f_{\lambda}, y_{0} + \dot{y}_{0} \alpha_{\kappa}h + h^{2}. \sum_{\lambda=0}^{\kappa-1} \gamma_{\kappa\lambda}g_{\lambda}\right)$$

$$y_{0} + \dot{y}_{0} \alpha_{\kappa}h + h^{2}. \sum_{\lambda=0}^{\kappa-1} \gamma_{\kappa\lambda}g_{\lambda}$$

$$(\kappa = 1, 2, ..., 9)$$

$$x = x_{0} + \dot{x}_{0}h + h^{2}. \sum_{\kappa=0}^{8} c_{\kappa}f_{\kappa} + 0(h^{8})$$

$$\dot{x} = x_{0} + \dot{x}_{0}h + h^{2}. \sum_{\kappa=0}^{9} \dot{c}_{\kappa}f_{\kappa} + 0(h^{9})$$

$$\dot{x} = \dot{x}_{0} + h. \sum_{\kappa=0}^{8} \dot{c}_{\kappa}f_{\kappa} + 0(h^{8})$$

$$\dot{c}_{\kappa} = c_{\kappa} \text{ for } \kappa = 0, 1, 2, ..., 7$$

$$\dot{c}_{0} = c_{8}$$

$$(45)$$

In Table 1 the last 72 equations of condition now have to be omitted, since they correspond to tenth-order terms in the Taylor expansion for x or to ninth-order terms in the expansion for \dot{x} .

Instead of equations (18) through (27), we now make the following assumptions:

$$\begin{vmatrix}
c_3 & \gamma_{31} + c_4 & \gamma_{41} + \dots + c_7 & \gamma_{71} + c_8 & \begin{cases}
\gamma_{81} \\ \gamma_{91}
\end{cases} = 0 \\
\dot{c}_3 & \gamma_{31} + \dot{c}_4 & \gamma_{41} + \dots + \dot{c}_7 & \gamma_{71} + \dot{c}_8 & \gamma_{81} = 0
\end{vmatrix} .$$
(50)

$$\begin{vmatrix}
c_{3} & \alpha_{3} & \gamma_{31} + c_{4} & \alpha_{4} & \gamma_{41} + \dots + c_{7} & \alpha_{7} & \gamma_{71} + c_{8} & \gamma_{91} = 0 \\
\dot{c}_{3} & \alpha_{3} & \gamma_{31} + \dot{c}_{4} & \alpha_{4} & \gamma_{41} + \dots + \dot{c}_{7} & \alpha_{7} & \gamma_{71} + \dot{c}_{8} & \gamma_{81} = 0
\end{vmatrix}$$
(51)

$$\begin{vmatrix}
c_{3} & \gamma_{32} + c_{4} & \gamma_{42} + \dots + c_{7} & \gamma_{72} + c_{8} & \gamma_{92} = 0 \\
\dot{c}_{3} & \gamma_{32} + \dot{c}_{4} & \gamma_{42} + \dots + \dot{c}_{7} & \gamma_{72} + \dot{c}_{8} & \gamma_{82} = 0
\end{vmatrix} .$$
(52)

Because of $\gamma_{91} = c_1 = 0$, we obtain from the first equation (50):

$$\gamma_{81} = 0 \quad . \tag{53}$$

The assumptions (46) through (52) reduce the equations of conditions of Table 1 to those of Table 5.

12. We now have to solve the equations of Table 5 together with the assumptions (47) through (52): The first seven equations of Table 5 allow us to express the weight factors by the α 's. From the first equation (47) we obtain γ_{21} . The second equation (47), the first equation (48), and the first equation (49) lead to a restrictive condition for the α 's:

$$\alpha_1 = \frac{1}{5} \alpha_3 \frac{5\alpha_2 - 3\alpha_3}{2\alpha_2 - \alpha_3} \tag{54}$$

and to γ_{31} , γ_{32} . The third equation (47), the second equation (48), and the second equation (49) yield γ_{41} , γ_{42} , γ_{43} .

On the other hand, equations (50) and (51) allow us to express γ_{41} , γ_{51} , γ_{61} , and γ_{71} by γ_{31} , the α 's and the weight factors. Therefore, we have two different expressions for γ_{41} . Equating them leads to another restrictive condition for the α 's:

$$\alpha_{2} = \frac{1}{5} \frac{2\alpha_{3}^{2} \frac{\gamma_{41}}{\gamma_{31}} - \left(\frac{\alpha_{4}}{\alpha_{3}}\right)^{3} \alpha_{4} (5\alpha_{3} - 3\alpha_{4})}{\alpha_{3} \cdot \frac{\gamma_{41}}{\gamma_{31}} - \left(\frac{\alpha_{4}}{\alpha_{3}}\right)^{3} (2\alpha_{3} - \alpha_{4})} . \tag{55}$$

Since γ_{51} is already known, the coefficients γ_{52} , γ_{53} , γ_{54} are obtained from the fourth equation (47), the third equation (48), and the third equation (49).

Putting $\gamma_{62} = 0$, we obtain, since γ_{61} is already known, γ_{63} , γ_{64} , γ_{65} from the fifth equation (47), the fourth equation (48), and the fourth equation (49).

Since $\gamma_{92}=c_2=0$, the first equation (52) yields γ_{72} . Since γ_{71} is known, we can obtain γ_{73} , γ_{74} , γ_{75} , γ_{76} from the sixth equation (47), the fifth equation (48), the fifth equation (49), and the last equation of Table 5 (written as equation with weight factors c_{ν}).

Similarly, the second equation (52) yields γ_{82} . Setting γ_{83} = 0, we obtain γ_{84} , γ_{85} , γ_{86} , γ_{87} from the seventh equation (47), the sixth equation (48), the sixth equation (49), and the last equation of Table 5 (written as equation with weight factors $\dot{\mathbf{c}}_{\nu}$).

This concludes the computation of the coefficients $\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$ since $\gamma_{9\lambda}$ ($\lambda=0,1,\ldots,8$) are equal to the weight factors c_{λ} ($\lambda=0,1,\ldots,8$) and $\gamma_{\kappa0}$ ($\kappa=1,2,\ldots,9$) can be determined from (4).

13. Table 6 lists the coefficients of a seventh-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula RKN 7 (8). The restrictive condition (55) makes it somewhat harder than in the case of the formula RKN 8 (9) to find reasonably simple α -values. This explains the somewhat unwieldy coefficients $\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$ of Table 6.

We notice in Table 6 that α_2 and \dot{c}_4 are negative. It is possible to obtain positive values for all α 's and all weight factors by a different choice of α_3 (e.g., $\alpha_3 = \frac{1}{12}$). However, the coefficients $\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$ then turn out to be even more formidable.

In Table 7 the error coefficients of the formula of Table 6 are listed in the same way as we have listed in Table 4 the error coefficients of the formula of Table 3.

SECTION III. SIXTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 6(7)

14. For the derivation of a sixth-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula RKN 6(7), we proceed in a quite similar way as in Sections I and II. In the case of a sixth-order formula RKN 6(7) we have to consider only the first 43 equations of Table 1. We base our sixth-order formulas on seven evaluations of the differential equations per step and allow for an eighth evaluation that will be taken over as first evaluation for the next step. We then have:

$$f_{0} = f (t_{0}, \mathbf{x}_{0}, \mathbf{y}_{0})$$

$$f_{\kappa} = f \left(t_{0} + \alpha_{\kappa} \mathbf{h}, \mathbf{x}_{0} + \dot{\mathbf{x}}_{0} \mathbf{h} + \mathbf{h}^{2} \cdot \sum_{\lambda=0}^{\kappa-1} \gamma_{\kappa \lambda} f_{\lambda} \right)$$

$$y_{0} + \dot{\mathbf{y}}_{0} \mathbf{h} + \mathbf{h}^{2} \cdot \sum_{\lambda=0}^{\kappa-1} \gamma_{\kappa \lambda} g_{\lambda}$$

$$(\kappa = 1, 2, \dots, 7)$$

$$(56)$$

$$\mathbf{x} = \mathbf{x}_{0} + \dot{\mathbf{x}}_{0} \, \mathbf{h} + \mathbf{h}^{2} \cdot \sum_{\kappa=0}^{6} \mathbf{c}_{\kappa} \, \mathbf{f}_{\kappa} + 0 \, (\mathbf{h}^{7})$$

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}} = \mathbf{x}_{0} + \dot{\mathbf{x}}_{0} \, \mathbf{h} + \mathbf{h}^{2} \cdot \sum_{\kappa=0}^{7} \dot{\mathbf{c}}_{\kappa} \, \mathbf{f}_{\kappa} + 0 \, (\mathbf{h}^{8})$$
(57)

and

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}} = \dot{\mathbf{x}}_0 + \mathbf{h} \cdot \sum_{\kappa=0}^{6} \dot{\mathbf{c}}_{\kappa} f_{\kappa} + 0 \ (\mathbf{h}^7)$$

and

$$\begin{array}{c}
\stackrel{\wedge}{\mathbf{c}}_{\kappa} = \mathbf{c}_{\kappa} \text{ for } \kappa=0, 1, 2, \dots, 5 \\
\stackrel{\wedge}{\mathbf{c}}_{6} = 0 \\
\stackrel{\wedge}{\mathbf{c}}_{7} = \mathbf{c}_{6}
\end{array}$$
(58)

In the case of a sixth-order formula RKN 6(7), we make the following assumptions:

Obviously, these assumptions reduce the equations of Table 1 to those of Table 8.

15. We now solve the equations of Table 8 together with the assumptions (60), (61), and (62). The first six equations of Table 8 yield the weight factors as functions of the α 's. From the first equations (60) and (61), we obtain the restrictive condition:

$$\alpha_1 = \frac{1}{2} \alpha_2 \tag{63}$$

and the coefficient γ_{21} . The second equations (60) and (61) yield γ_{31} and γ_{32} . Setting $\gamma_{41}=0$, we obtain γ_{42} , γ_{43} from the third equations (60) and (61). Since $\gamma_{71}=c_1=0$, the first equation (62) yield γ_{51} . The coefficients γ_{52} , γ_{53} , γ_{54} are then obtained from the fourth equations (60), (61) and the last equation of Table 8, written as equation with weight factors c_{p} .

The coefficient γ_{61} is determined by the second equation (62). Setting $\gamma_{62}=0$, the coefficients γ_{63} , γ_{64} , γ_{65} can be computed from the fifth equations (60) and (61) and from the last equation of Table 8, written as equation with weight factors $\dot{\mathbf{e}}_{p}$.

This concludes the computation of the coefficients $\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$ since $\gamma_{7\lambda}$ ($\lambda=0,\ 1,\ \ldots,\ 6$) are equal to the weight factors c_{λ} ($\lambda=0,\ 1,\ \ldots,\ 6$) and $\gamma_{\kappa0}$ ($\kappa=1,\ 2,\ \ldots,\ 7$) can be determined from (4).

16. In Table 9 the coefficients of a sixth-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula RKN 6(7) are presented. In Table 10 the error coefficients for the leading truncation error term in x and x are listed. Again, if the error coefficients differ by a constant numerical factor only, the coefficient with the largest factor is listed. As Table 10 shows, the error coefficients in x are of about the same order of magnitude as the error coefficient in x.

SECTION IV. FIFTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 5(6)

17. To derive a fifth-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula RKN 5(6), we proceed in a quite similar way as in Sections I to III. We base our fifth-order formula on six evaluations of the differential equations per step and allow for a seventh evaluation that will be taken over as first evaluation for the next step. We then have.

$$f_{0} = f(t_{0}, x_{0}, y_{0})$$

$$f_{K} = f\left(t_{0} + \alpha_{K}h, x_{0} + \dot{x}_{0} \alpha_{K}h + h^{2} \cdot \sum_{\lambda=0}^{K-1} \gamma_{K}\lambda^{f}_{\lambda}, y_{0} + \dot{y}_{0}\alpha_{K}h + h^{2} \cdot \sum_{\lambda=0}^{K-1} \gamma_{K}\lambda^{g}_{\lambda}\right)$$

$$(64)$$

$$(\kappa = 1, 2, \ldots, 6)$$

$$\mathbf{x} = \mathbf{x}_{0} + \dot{\mathbf{x}}_{0}\mathbf{h} + \mathbf{h}^{2} \cdot \sum_{\kappa=0}^{5} \mathbf{c}_{\kappa} \mathbf{f}_{\kappa} + 0 (\mathbf{h}^{6})$$

$$\mathbf{\dot{x}} = \mathbf{x}_{0} + \dot{\mathbf{x}}_{0}\mathbf{h} + \mathbf{h}^{2} \cdot \sum_{\kappa=0}^{6} \mathbf{\dot{c}}_{\kappa} \mathbf{f}_{\kappa} + 0 (\mathbf{h}^{7})$$

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}} = \dot{\mathbf{x}}_{0} + \mathbf{h} \cdot \sum_{\kappa=0}^{5} \dot{\mathbf{c}}_{\kappa} \mathbf{f}_{\kappa} + 0 (\mathbf{h}^{6})$$

$$\cdot (65)$$

$$\hat{\mathbf{c}}_{\kappa} = \mathbf{c}_{\kappa} \text{ for } \kappa = 0, 1, 2, 3, 4$$

$$\hat{\mathbf{c}}_{5} = 0$$

$$\hat{\mathbf{c}}_{6} = \mathbf{c}_{5}$$
(66)

We make the following assumptions:

$$c_{1} = \hat{c}_{1} = \dot{c}_{1} = 0 , \quad \alpha_{5} = \alpha_{6} = 1 ,$$

$$\gamma_{21}\alpha_{1} = \frac{1}{6}\alpha_{2}^{3}$$

$$\gamma_{31}\alpha_{1} + \gamma_{32}\alpha_{2} = \frac{1}{6}\alpha_{3}^{3}$$

$$\gamma_{41}\alpha_{1} + \gamma_{42}\alpha_{2} + \gamma_{43}\alpha_{3} = \frac{1}{6}\alpha_{4}^{3}$$

$$\gamma_{51}\alpha_{1} + \gamma_{52}\alpha_{2} + \gamma_{53}\alpha_{3} + \gamma_{54}\alpha_{4} = \frac{1}{6}\alpha_{5}^{3}$$

$$\gamma_{61}\alpha_{1} + \gamma_{62}\alpha_{2} + \gamma_{63}\alpha_{3} + \gamma_{64}\alpha_{4} + \gamma_{65}\alpha_{5} = \frac{1}{6}\alpha_{6}^{3}$$

$$\gamma_{31} = 0 , \quad \gamma_{41} = 0 , \quad \gamma_{51} = 0 , \quad \gamma_{61} = 0 ,$$

$$(69)$$

which reduce the equations of condition of Table 1 to the equations of Table 11.

18. The first five equations of Table 11 yield the weight factors \mathbf{c}_{κ} or $\dot{\mathbf{c}}_{\kappa}$ as functions of the α_{κ} 's.

From the first two equations (68) we obtain γ_{21} and γ_{32} . From the third equation (68) and from the last equation of Table 11, this equation written with weight factors \mathbf{c}_{κ} , the coefficients γ_{42} and γ_{43} can be determined. Using the fourth equation (68) and the last equation of Table 11, written as equation with weight factors $\dot{\mathbf{c}}_{\kappa}$, the coefficients γ_{53} and γ_{54} can be expressed by the α_{κ} 's and by γ_{52} . By still having γ_{52} available, we could select γ_{52} in such a way that some of the error coefficients of our fifth-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula become small. By doing so, we obtained error coefficients, some of which were considerably smaller than those obtained from setting $\gamma_{52}=0$. The coefficients $\gamma_{6\lambda}$ of the last equation (68) are naturally equal to the weight factors \mathbf{c}_{λ} , since it was intended to take over the seventh evaluation as first evaluation for the next step.

19. In Table 12 are listed the coefficients of a fifth-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula RKN 5(6), and in Table 13 the error coefficients in x as well as in x for the formula of Table 12. Table 13 shows that the error coefficients in x are of the same order of magnitude or smaller than the error coefficient in x.

SECTION V. FOURTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 4(5)

20. A fourth-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula RKN 4(5) can be based on four evaluations per step if we allow for a fifth evaluation that will be taken over as first evaluation for the next step:

$$f_{\kappa} = f(t_{0}, x_{0}, y_{0})$$

$$f_{\kappa} = f\left(t_{0} + \alpha_{\kappa} h, x_{0} + \dot{x}_{0} \alpha_{\kappa} h + h^{2} \cdot \sum_{\lambda=0}^{\kappa-1} \gamma_{\kappa \lambda} f_{\kappa}, \right)$$

$$y_{0} + \dot{y}_{0} \alpha_{\kappa} h + h^{2} \cdot \sum_{\lambda=0}^{\kappa-1} \gamma_{\kappa \lambda} g_{\kappa}$$

$$(70)$$

$$(\kappa = 1, 2, 3, 4)$$

$$x = x_{0} + \dot{x}_{0}h + h^{2} \cdot \sum_{\kappa=0}^{3} c_{\kappa} f_{\kappa} + 0(h^{5})$$

$$\dot{x} = x_{0} + \dot{x}_{0}h + h^{2} \cdot \sum_{\kappa=0}^{4} \dot{c}_{\kappa} f_{\kappa} + 0(h^{6})$$

$$\dot{x} = \dot{x}_{0} + h \cdot \sum_{\kappa=0}^{3} \dot{c}_{\kappa} f_{\kappa} + 0(h^{5})$$

$$(71)$$

$$\hat{\mathbf{c}}_{\kappa} = \mathbf{c}_{\kappa} \text{ for } \kappa = 0, 1, 2$$

$$\hat{\mathbf{c}}_{3} = 0$$

$$\hat{\mathbf{c}}_{4} = \mathbf{c}_{3}$$
(72)

$$\alpha_3 = \alpha_4 = 1 . (73)$$

Table 14 shows the reduced equations of condition for a fourth-order formula RKN 4(5).

- 21. The first four equations of Table 14 determine the weight factors \mathbf{c}_{κ} and $\dot{\mathbf{c}}_{\kappa}$ as functions of the α_{κ} 's.
 - Since we require that the fifth evaluation should be taken over as first evaluation for the next step, the coefficients $\gamma_{4\lambda}$ must be equal to the weight factors c_{λ} (λ = 0, 1, 2, 3). Setting γ_{31} = 0, the coefficients γ_{21} and γ_{32} can then be determined from the two equations in the last line of Table 14.
- 22. In Table 15 are listed the coefficients of a fourth-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula RKN 4(5) and in Table 16, the error coefficients in x as well as in x for the formula of Table 15. There is only one error coefficient in x which is different from zero. The six error coefficients in x which are all different from zero are equal in magnitude or smaller than the error coefficient in x. Again, if the error coefficients differ by a constant factor only, those with the largest factor are listed in Table 16.

SECTION VI. SOME RUNGE-KUTTA-NYSTRÖM FORMULAS OF OTHER AUTHORS

23. In Section VII we shall apply the Runge-Kutta-Nyström formulas of Sections I through V to a numerical example. We shall compare their performance with that of our earlier Runge-Kutta formulas for first-order differential equations [1], [2] and also with the performance of some Runge-Kutta-Nyström formulas by other authors.

For the convenience of the reader we list in Tables 17 through 22 the Runge-Kutta-Nyström coefficients and also the error coefficients for a fourth-, a fifth-, and a sixth-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula, which we have used for comparison in Section VII. As before, if the error coefficients differ only by a constant factor, we list those with the largest factor. The fourth- and the fifth-order Runge-Kutta-Nyström formulas were published by E. J. NYSTROM ([4], p. 24) and the sixth-order formula by J. ALBRECHT ([5], p. 103).

A comparison of Table 18 with Table 16 shows that NYSTRÖM's error coefficients are two to nine times as large as ours. Therefore, NYSTRÖM's formula of Table 17 can be expected to have a larger leading truncation error term than our formula RKN 4(5).

A comparison of Table 20 with Table 13 shows again that our formula RKN 5(6) has considerably smaller error coefficients than NYSTRÖM's formula RKN 5. For instance, our error coefficient T_5 is only about one-seventeenth of NYSTRÖM's coefficient T_5 .

Again, the error coefficients of our Runge-Kutta-Nyström formula RKN 6(7), as listed in Table 10, are smaller than those of ALBRECHT's formula, listed in Table 22. For instance, our largest error coefficient in x, T_9 , is only about one-fifth of ALBRECHT's coefficient T_9 .

24. The formulas of NYSTROM and ALBRECHT of this section do not include an automatic stepsize control as our formulas of Sections I through V do. Therefore, we have to apply to the formulas of NYSTRÖM and ALBRECHT the standard stepsize control procedure that consists of recomputing two consecutive steps of stepsize h by one step of double stepsize 2h. It can easily be shown that the truncation error after one step of stepsize h is approximately

$$E = \frac{1}{2(2^{n}-1)} \cdot \Delta x_2 , \qquad (74)$$

with n being the order of the formula under consideration and $\Delta \ x_2$ the difference of our two results after two steps of stepsize h or one step of stepsize 2h, respectively. If the formula under consideration requires m evaluations per step, this stepsize control procedure would increase the number of evaluations per step to 2m - 1. So NYSTRÖM's formulas RKN 4 and RKN 5 and ALBRECHT's formula RKN 6 would require five, seven, and nine evaluations per step, respectively. For NYSTRÖM's formulas, this is one evaluation more per step than our formulas RKN 4 (5), RKN 5(6) require, and for ALBRECHT's formula RKN 6, this is two evaluations more than our formula RKN 6(7) requires, since for our formulas we can take over the last evaluation as first evaluation for the next step. Only for the very first integration step our formulas would require five, seven, and eight evaluations, respectively. Compared with NYSTRÖM's or ALBRECHT's formulas, our formulas have the further advantage that they have considerably smaller leading truncation error terms and therefore permit the use of a larger integration stepsize without loss of accuracy. The numerical example of Section VII will demonstrate this advantage.

SECTION VII: APPLICATION TO A NUMERICAL PROBLEM

25. In this section we apply the Runge-Kutta-Nyström formulas of this report and some of the Runge-Kutta formulas of our earlier reports [1], [2] to a numerical problem. For comparison, we also apply the Runge-Kutta-Nyström formulas of Section VI to the same problem.

In Table 23 the problem is stated, and the results of the numerical integration are presented for the various formulas.

All calculations were executed on an IBM-7094 computer in double precision (16 decimal places). The computer was equipped with an electronic clock to measure the running time for the various formulas.

26. The stepsize control for our Runge-Kutta-Nyström formulas RKN 4(5), ..., RKN 8(9) was set up in the following way. For a preset tolerance TOL (in Table 23 we used TOL = $0.1 \cdot 10^{-16}$), we computed for each step the products TOLX=TOL $\cdot |x_0|$, TOLY=TOL $\cdot |y_0|$ which we consider as the tolerable errors in x and y for the step under consideration. Having computed the approximate truncation errors TE_x , TE_y

according to Tables 3, 6, 9, 12, or 15, respectively, we then determined the maximum of the ratios $|TE_x|/TOLX$, $|TE_y|/TOLY$ and then required that for this maximum (max) the following inequalities hold:

$$\left(\frac{1}{2}\right)^{n+1} \leq \max \leq 1 \quad , \tag{75}$$

n being the order of our formula.

If necessary, we halved or doubled the stepsize until (75) held. However, since the values TE_{x} , TE_{y} are only approximations of the true truncation error, it can happen that (75) never holds: If a certain stepsize h is too small $\max < \left(\frac{1}{2}\right)^{n+1}$, the stepsize 2h might be too large: $\max > 1$. In such a case, we accepted the smaller stepsize h as final.

max > 1. In such a case, we accepted the smaller stepsize h as final. The stepsize control for our Runge-Kutta formulas RK 4(5),..., RK 8(9) was set up quite similarly, but here we also tested the truncation errors in \dot{x} and \dot{y} , since for these formulas we had to rewrite the differential equations of Table 23 as a system of four first-order differential equations in x, y, \dot{x} , \dot{y} .

In the case of the Runge-Kutta-Nyström formulas of Section VI we used equation (74) as approximation for the truncation error.

27. Table 23 shows the result of the various formulas for t=10. Since our problem has a solution in closed form, the total errors Δx , Δy , $\Delta \dot{x}$, $\Delta \dot{y}$ are easily available and are listed in Table 23 for t=10. In each of the five groups of formulas, these errors do not differ much from one another. This means that all fourth-order formulas, etc., are of about the same accuracy.

However, the formulas of each group differ considerably from one another with respect to the number of steps required to cover the interval from $t_i = \sqrt{\pi/2}$ to t=10 and with respect to the execution time on the

computer. Our new Runge-Kutta-Nyström formulas RKN 4(5),..., RKN 8(9) require half or less than half the execution time of our earlier Runge-Kutta formulas RK 4(5),..., RK 8(9) or of the formulas of Section VI.

Computation Laboratory

George C. Marshall Space Flight Center
National Aeronautics and Space Administration
Marshall Space Flight Center, Alabama 35812, September 9, 1971
014-00-00-62

REFERENCES

- [1] FEHLBERG, E.: Classical Fifth-, Sixth-, Seventh-, and Eighth-Order Runge-Kutta Formulas with Stepsize Control. NASA TR R-287, October 1968.
- [2] FEHLBERG, E.: Low-Order Classical Runge-Kutta Formulas with Stepsize Control and their Application to some Heat Transfer Problems. NASA TR R-315, July 1969.
- FEHLBERG, E.: Some Experimental Results Concerning the Error Propagation in Runge-Kutta Type Integration Formulas. NASA TR R-352, October 1970.
- [4] NYSTRÖM, E. J.: Über die numerische Integration von Differentialgleichungen. Acta Soc. Sci. Fenn. 50, no. 13, 1925.
- [5] ALBRECHT, J.: Beiträge zum Runge-Kutta-Verfahren. Z. Angew. Math. Mech. 35, 1955, pp. 100-110.

	х -	x	
1. h ²	$\frac{1}{2} = c_0 + c_1 + c_2 + c_3 + c_4 + \dots$	- 1	h
1. h ³	$\frac{1}{6} c_1 \alpha_1 + c_2 \alpha_2 + c_3 \alpha_3 + c_4 \alpha_4 + \dots$	$=\frac{1}{2}$	h²
1. h ⁴	$\frac{1}{24} := \frac{1}{2} c_1 \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_2 \alpha_2^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4^2 + \dots$	- 1/6	h 3
2. h4(*)	$\frac{1}{24} - \frac{1}{2} c_1 \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_2 \alpha_2^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4^2 + \dots$	$\frac{1}{6}$	(*) h ³
1. h ⁵	$\frac{1}{120} - \frac{1}{6} c_1 \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{6} c_2 \alpha_2^3 + \frac{1}{6} c_3 \alpha_3^3 + \frac{1}{6} c_4 \alpha_4^3 + \dots$	- 1/24	h ⁴
2. h ⁵ (*)	$\frac{3}{120} = \frac{1}{2} c_1 \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{2} c_2 \alpha_2^3 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3^3 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4^3 + \dots$	$=\frac{3}{24}$	(*) h ⁴
3. h ⁵	$\frac{1}{120} c_2 \cdot \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + c_3(\gamma_{31}\alpha_1 - \gamma_{32}\alpha_2) + c_4(\gamma_{41}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{42}\alpha_2 + \gamma_{43}\alpha_3) + \dots$	$\frac{1}{24}$	h ⁴
1. h ⁶	$\frac{1}{720} - \frac{1}{24} c_1 \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{24} c_2 \alpha_2^4 + \frac{1}{24} c_3 \alpha_3^4 + \frac{1}{24} c_4 \alpha_4^4 + \dots$	1 1 20	h ⁵
2. h ⁶ (*)	$\frac{6}{720} = \frac{1}{4} c_1 \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{4} c_2 \alpha_2^4 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \alpha_3^4 + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \alpha_4^4 + \dots$	120	(*) h ⁵
3. h ⁶ (*)	$\frac{3}{720} = \frac{1}{8} c_1 \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{8} c_2 \alpha_2^4 + \frac{1}{8} c_3 \alpha_3^4 + \frac{1}{8} c_4 \alpha_4^4 + \dots$	$\frac{3}{120}$	(*) h ⁵
4. h ⁶	$\frac{4}{720} = c_2\alpha_2 \cdot \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + c_3\alpha_3(\gamma_{31}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{32}\alpha_2) + c_4\alpha_4(\gamma_{41}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{42}\alpha_2 + \gamma_{43}\alpha_3) + \dots$	$\frac{4}{120}$	h ⁵
5. h ⁶	$\frac{1}{720} = \frac{1}{2} c_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{2} c_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots$	$=\frac{1}{120}$	h ⁵
6. h ⁶ (*)	$\frac{1}{720} \frac{1}{2} c_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{2} c_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots$	$= \frac{1}{120}$	(*) h ⁵
1. h ⁷	$\frac{1}{5040} = \frac{1}{120} c_1 \alpha_1^5 + \frac{1}{120} c_2 \alpha_2^5 + \frac{1}{120} c_3 \alpha_3^5 + \frac{1}{120} c_4 \alpha_4^5 + \dots$	720	h ⁶
2. h ⁷ (*)	$\frac{10}{50^{1}0} - \frac{1}{12} c_1 \alpha_1^5 + \frac{1}{12} c_2 \alpha_2^5 + \frac{1}{12} c_3 \alpha_3^5 + \frac{1}{12} c_4 \alpha_4^5 + \dots$	$-\frac{10}{720}$	(*) h ⁶
3. h ⁷ (*)	$\frac{15}{5040} = \frac{1}{8} c_1 \alpha_1^5 + \frac{1}{8} c_2 \alpha_2^5 + \frac{1}{8} c_3 \alpha_3^5 + \frac{1}{8} c_4 \alpha_4^5 + \dots$	$-\frac{15}{720}$	(*) h ⁶
4. h ⁷	$\frac{10}{5040} = \frac{1}{2} c_2 \alpha_2^2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2) + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3) + \dots$	$=\frac{10}{720}$	h ⁶
5. h [?] (*)	$\frac{10}{5040} - \frac{1}{2} c_2 \alpha_2^2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2) + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3) + \dots$	$=\frac{10}{720}$	(*) h ⁶
6. h ⁷	$\frac{5}{5040} - \frac{1}{2} c_2\alpha_2 , \gamma_{21}\alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_3\alpha_3(\gamma_{31}\alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32}\alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{2} c_4\alpha_4(\gamma_{41}\alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42}\alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43}\alpha_3^2) + . . .$	$\frac{5}{720}$	h ⁶
7. h ⁷ (*)	$\frac{5}{5\ 040} = \frac{1}{2} \ c_2\alpha_2 \ , \ \gamma_{21}\alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} \ c_3\alpha_3(\gamma_{31}\alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32}\alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{2} \ c_4\alpha_4(\gamma_{41}\alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42}\alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43}\alpha_3^2) + \dots \ .$	$-\frac{5}{720}$	(*) h ⁶
8. h ⁷	$\frac{1}{5\ 040}\ -\ \frac{1}{6}\ c_2\cdot\gamma_{21}\alpha_1^3\ +\ \frac{1}{6}\ c_3(\gamma_{31}\alpha_1^3\ +\ \gamma_{32}\alpha_2^3)\ +\ \frac{1}{6}\ c_4(\gamma_{41}\alpha_1^3+\gamma_{42}\alpha_2^3+\gamma_{43}\alpha_3^3)\ +\ .\ .\ .$	$=\frac{1}{720}$	h ⁶
9. h ⁷ (*)	$\frac{3}{5040} = \frac{1}{2} c_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^3) + \frac{1}{2} c_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^3) + \dots$	$=\frac{3}{720}$	(*) h ⁶
10. h ⁷	$\frac{1}{5040} = c_3 \cdot \gamma_{32} \cdot \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + c_4 [\gamma_{42} \cdot \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} (\gamma_{31}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{32}\alpha_2)] + \dots$	$=\frac{1}{720}$	h ⁶

	х		
1. h ⁸	$\frac{1}{40320} \frac{1}{720} c_1\alpha_1^6 + \frac{1}{720} c_2\alpha_2^6 + \frac{1}{720} c_3\alpha_3^6 + \frac{1}{720} c_4\alpha_4^6 + \dots$	<u>1</u> 5 040	h ⁷
2. h ⁸ (*)	$\frac{15}{40,320} - \frac{1}{48} c_1 \alpha_1^6 + \frac{1}{48} c_2 \alpha_2^6 + \frac{1}{48} c_3 \alpha_3^6 - \frac{1}{48} c_4 \alpha_4^6 + \dots$	$=\frac{15}{5.040}$	(∻) h ⁷
3. h ⁸ (*)	$\frac{45}{40320} = \frac{1}{16} c_1 \alpha_1^6 + \frac{1}{16} c_2 \alpha_2^6 + \frac{1}{16} c_3 \alpha_3^6 + \frac{1}{16} c_4 \alpha_4^6 + \dots$	5 040	(=) h ⁷
4. h ⁸	$\frac{20}{40,320} = \frac{1}{6} c_2 \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{6} c_3 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2) + \frac{1}{6} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3) + \dots$	20 5 040	h ⁷
5. h ⁸ (*)	$\frac{15}{40320} = \frac{1}{48} \mathbf{c}_1 \alpha_1^6 + \frac{1}{48} \mathbf{c}_2 \alpha_2^6 + \frac{1}{48} \mathbf{c}_3 \alpha_3^6 + \frac{1}{48} \mathbf{c}_4 \alpha_4^6 + \dots$	15 5 040	(*) h ^T
6. h ⁸ (*)	$\frac{60}{40,320} = \frac{1}{2} c_2 \alpha_3^3 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2) + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3) + \dots$	60 5 040	(*) h [?]
7. h ⁸	$\frac{15}{40320} = \frac{1}{4} c_2 \alpha_2^2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots$	15 5 040	\mathbf{h}^{i}
8. h ⁸ (*)	$-\frac{15}{40320} - \frac{1}{4} c_2 \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots$	15 5 040	(*) h ⁷
9. h ⁸	$\frac{10}{40320} = \frac{1}{2} c_2(\gamma_{21}\alpha_1)^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_3(\gamma_{31}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{32}\alpha_2)^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_4(\gamma_{41}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{42}\alpha_2 + \gamma_{43}\alpha_3)^2 + \cdots$	- <u>10</u> 5 040	\mathbf{h}^{\dagger}
10. h ⁸ (*)	$\frac{15}{40320} = \frac{1}{4} c_2 \alpha_2^2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \cdots$	15 5 040	(*) h [†]
11. h ⁸ (*)	$\frac{15}{40320} = \frac{1}{4}\mathbf{c}_{2}\alpha_{2}^{2} \cdot \gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{2} + \frac{1}{4}\mathbf{c}_{3}\alpha_{3}^{2}(\gamma_{31}\alpha_{1}^{2} + \gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{2}) + \frac{1}{4}\mathbf{c}_{4}\alpha_{4}^{2}(\gamma_{41}\alpha_{1}^{2} + \gamma_{42}\alpha_{2}^{2} \cdot \gamma_{43}\alpha_{3}^{2}) + \dots$	15 5 040	(*) h [†]
12. h ⁸	$\frac{6}{40320} = \frac{1}{6}c_{2}\alpha_{2} \cdot \gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{3} + \frac{1}{6}c_{3}\alpha_{3}(\gamma_{31}\alpha_{1}^{3} + \gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{3}) + \frac{1}{6}c_{4}\alpha_{4}(\gamma_{41}\alpha_{1}^{3} + \gamma_{42}\alpha_{2}^{3} + \gamma_{43}\alpha_{3}^{3}) + \dots$	5 040	h i
13. h ⁸ (*)	$\frac{18}{40.320} = \frac{1}{2} c_2 \alpha_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^3) + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^3) + \dots$	18 5 040	(*) h ⁷
14. h ⁸	$\frac{6}{40\ 320} - c_3\alpha_3 \cdot \gamma_{32} \cdot \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + c_4\alpha_4 [\gamma_{42} \cdot \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{43}(\gamma_{31}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{32}\alpha_2)] + \dots$	- <u>6</u> 5 040	h [†]
15. h ⁸	$\frac{1}{40\ 320} = \frac{1}{24} \ \mathbf{c_2} \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{24} \ \mathbf{c_3} (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^4) + \frac{1}{24} \ \mathbf{c_4} (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^4) + \dots$	1 5 040	h ¹
16. h ⁸ (*)	$\frac{6}{40.320} = \frac{1}{4} c_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^4) + \frac{1}{4} c_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^4) + \dots$	5 040	; *) h [‡]
17. h ⁸ (*)	$\frac{3}{40\ 320} - \frac{1}{8} c_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{8} c_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^4) + \frac{1}{8} c_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^4) + \dots$	$\frac{3}{5.040}$	(*) h ⁷
18. h ⁸	$\frac{4}{40\ 320} c_3 \cdot \gamma_{32}\alpha_2 \cdot \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + c_4 [\gamma_{42}\alpha_2 \cdot \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{43}\alpha_3(\gamma_{31}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{32}\alpha_2)] + \dots$	$-\frac{4}{5.040}$	h ⁷
19. h ⁸	$\frac{1}{40\ 320} = \frac{1}{2} c_3 \cdot \gamma_{32} \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 [\gamma_{42} \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2)] + \dots$	- <u>1</u> 5 040	h ⁷
20. h ⁸ (*)	$\frac{1}{40320} = \frac{1}{2} c_3 \cdot \gamma_{32} \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \{ \gamma_{42} \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) \} + \dots$	= 1 5 040	(*) h ⁷

	X * · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
1. h ⁹	$\frac{1}{362\ 880} = \frac{1}{5\ 040}\ c_1\ \alpha_1^7 + \frac{1}{5\ 040}\ c_2\ \alpha_2^7 + \frac{1}{5\ 040}\ c_3\ \alpha_3^7 + \frac{1}{5\ 040}\ c_4\ \alpha_4^7 + \dots \qquad \qquad \frac{1}{40\ 320}$	h
2. h ³ (*)	$\frac{21}{362\ 880} - \frac{1}{240} \ c_1 \ \alpha_1^7 + \frac{1}{240} \ c_2 \ \alpha_2^7 + \frac{1}{240} \ c_3 \ \alpha_3^7 + \frac{1}{240} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^7 + \dots \qquad \qquad \frac{21}{40\ 320}$	(*) h ⁸
3. h ⁹ (*)	$\frac{105}{362 880} = \frac{1}{48} c_1 \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{48} c_2 \alpha_2^2 + \frac{1}{48} c_3 \alpha_3^2 + \frac{1}{48} c_4 \alpha_4^2 + \dots $ $= \frac{105}{40 320}$	(*) h ⁸
4. h ^a	$\frac{35}{362\ 880} = \frac{1}{24} \ c_2 \ \alpha_2^4 \cdot \gamma_{21} \ \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{24} \ c_3 \ \alpha_3^4 \ (\gamma_{31} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \ \alpha_2) + \frac{1}{24} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{35}{40\ 320} \ c_4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ \alpha_4^4 \ \alpha_$	h ⁸
5. h ⁸ (*)	$\frac{105}{362\ 880} - \frac{1}{48} c_1 \alpha_1^7 + \frac{1}{48} c_2 \alpha_2^7 + \frac{1}{48} c_3 \alpha_3^7 + \frac{1}{48} c_4 \alpha_4^7 + \dots \qquad \qquad \frac{105}{40\ 320}$	(*) h ^g
6. b ⁹ (*)	$\frac{210}{362\ 880} - \frac{1}{4} c_2 \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \alpha_3^4 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2) + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \alpha_4^4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3) + \dots \qquad \frac{210}{40\ 320}$	(*) h ⁸
7. h*	$\frac{35}{362} \frac{1}{880} = \frac{1}{12} c_2 \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{12} c_3 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{12} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 + \gamma_{43} $	h ⁶
8. h ⁹ (3)	$\frac{35}{362\ 880} = \frac{1}{12} c_2 \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{12} c_3 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{12} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots - \frac{35}{40\ 320} c_4 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{4$	(*) h ⁸
9. h ⁹ (*)	$\frac{105}{362.880} - \frac{1}{8} c_2 \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{8} c_3 \alpha_3^4 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2) + \frac{1}{8} c_4 \alpha_4^4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3) + \dots = \frac{105}{40.320}$	(*) h ⁸
10, h ^a	$\frac{70}{362.880} - \frac{1}{2} c_2 \alpha_2 (\gamma_{21} \alpha_1)^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2)^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3)^2 + \dots = \frac{70}{40.320}$	h ⁸
11. h ⁹ (*)	$\frac{105}{362\ 880} = \frac{1}{4} c_2 \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \alpha_3^3 \left(\gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 \right) + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \alpha_4^3 \left(\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2 \right) + \dots = \frac{105}{40\ 320}$	(*) h ⁸
12. b ⁹ (*)	$\frac{105}{362.880} + \frac{1}{4} c_2 \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots = \frac{105}{40.320}$	(*) h ^k
4.3. h ⁹	$\frac{21}{362} \frac{1}{880} - \frac{1}{12} c_2 \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{12} c_3 \alpha_3^2 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^3\right) + \frac{1}{12} c_4 \alpha_4^2 \left(\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^3\right) + \dots + \frac{21}{40.320}$	h ⁸
1:. h ^p (*)	$\frac{-63}{362} \frac{1}{880} = \frac{1}{4} c_2 \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^3) + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^3) + \dots = \frac{63}{40 \ 320}$	(*) h ⁸
Arc P	$\frac{24}{362.880} + \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3^2 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4^2 \left[\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 \right) \right] + \dots = \frac{21}{40.320}$	h ⁸
16, 9	$\frac{35}{362.880} = \frac{1}{2} c_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2) (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \dots $ $= \frac{35}{40.320}$	h ⁸
17, h' ()	$\frac{35}{362 \times 80} = \frac{1}{2} c_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 \right) \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 \right) + \dots = \frac{35}{40 \cdot 320}$	(*) h ⁸
18. ii ⁹ (+)	$\frac{21}{362 \text{ sso}} + \frac{1}{12} c_2 \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{12} c_3 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^3) + \frac{1}{12} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^3) + \dots = \frac{21}{40 320}$	(*) h ⁸
19c. h ⁹ (+)	$\frac{63}{362 \ 880} = \frac{1}{4} c_2 \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \alpha_3^2 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^3\right) + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \alpha_4^2 \left(\gamma_{11} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2\right) + \dots = \frac{63}{40 \ 320}$	(*) h ⁸
20. 5 ⁹ (7)	$\frac{21}{362.880} \times \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3^2 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4^2 \left(\gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 \right) \right) + \dots = \frac{21}{40.320}$	(*) h ⁸

	x ————————————————————————————————————	×	
21. h ⁹	$\frac{7}{362.880} = \frac{1}{24} c_2 \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{24} c_3 \alpha_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^4) + \frac{1}{24} c_4 \alpha_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^4) + \dots$	7 40 320	h ⁸
22. h ⁹ (*)	$\frac{42}{362.880} = \frac{1}{4} c_2 \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \alpha_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^4) + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \alpha_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^4) + \dots$	$=\frac{42}{40-320}$	(*j h ⁸
23. h ⁹ (*)	$\frac{21}{362.880} - \frac{1}{8} c_2 \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{8} c_3 \alpha_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^4) + \frac{1}{8} c_4 \alpha_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^4) + \dots$	$=\frac{21}{40\ 320}$	(*) h ⁸
24. h ⁹	$\frac{28}{362 \cdot 880} = c_3 \cdot \alpha_3 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + c_4 \cdot \alpha_4 \cdot \left[\gamma_{42} \cdot \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \cdot \alpha_3 \cdot \left(\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2 \right) \right] + \dots$	$\frac{28}{40 \ 320}$	h ⁸
25. h ⁹	$\frac{7}{362.880} = \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4 [(\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2)] + \dots$	$-\frac{7}{40-320}$	h ⁵
26. h ⁸ (*)	$\frac{7}{362\ 880} = \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4 \left[\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) \right] + \dots$	$=\frac{7}{40\ 320}$	(*) h ⁸
27. h ⁹	$\frac{1}{362\ 880} = \frac{1}{120} c_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^5 + \frac{1}{120} c_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^5) + \frac{1}{120} c_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^5 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^5) + \dots$	$=\frac{1}{40\ 320}$	h ⁸
28. h ⁹ (*)	$\frac{10}{362 \ 880} = \frac{1}{12} c_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^5 + \frac{1}{12} c_3 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^5 \right) + \frac{1}{12} c_4 \left(\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^5 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^5 \right) + \dots$	$=\frac{10}{40.320}$	(*) h ^d
29. h ⁹ (*)	$\frac{15}{362880} = \frac{1}{8} c_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^5 + \frac{1}{8} c_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^5) + \frac{1}{8} c_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^5 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^5) + \dots$	$=\frac{15}{40-320}$	(*) h ⁸
30. h ⁹	$\frac{10}{362 \cdot 880} = \frac{1}{2} c_3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \left\{ \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 \right) \right\} + \dots$	$-\frac{10}{40-320}$	h ⁸
31. h ⁹ (*)	$ \frac{10}{362 \cdot 880} - \frac{1}{2} c_3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \left[\gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 \right) \right] + \dots $	$=\frac{10}{40\ 320}$	(*) h ⁸
32. h ⁹	$\frac{5}{362 \cdot 880} = \frac{1}{2} \mathbf{c_3} + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} \mathbf{c_4} \left[\gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) \right] + \dots$	$=\frac{5}{40\ 320}$	h ⁸
33. h ⁹ (*)	$ \frac{5}{362\ 880} = \frac{1}{2} c_3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \left[\gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 \right) \right] + \dots $	$=\frac{5}{40\ 320}$	(*) h ⁸
34. h ⁹	$\frac{1}{362} \frac{1}{880} = \frac{1}{6} c_3 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{6} c_4 \left[\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{43} (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^3) \right] + \dots$	$=\frac{1}{40\ 320}$	h ⁸
35. h ⁹ (*)	$\frac{3}{362 \ 880} = \frac{1}{2} c_3 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \left[\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{43} (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^3) \right] + \dots$	$= \frac{3}{40 \ 320}$	(*) h ⁸
36. h ⁹	$\frac{1}{362.880} - c_4 + \gamma_{43} + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + c_5 \left\{ \gamma_{53} + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{54} \left(\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \left(\gamma_{31}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{32}\alpha_2 \right) \right) \right\} + \dots$	$-\frac{1}{40\ 320}$	h ⁸

TABLE 1. COMPLETE EQUATIONS OF CONDITION FOR EIGHTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 8(9) (Continued)

	x	×	
1. h ¹⁰	$\frac{1}{3\ 628\ 800} = \frac{1}{40\ 320}\ c_1\ \alpha_1^6\ + \frac{1}{40\ 320}\ c_2\ \alpha_2^6\ + \frac{1}{40\ 320}\ c_3\ \alpha_3^6\ + \frac{1}{40\ 320}\ c_4\ \alpha_4^6\ + \ldots$	362 880	h³
2. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{28}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} : \frac{1}{1 \cdot 440} c_1 \alpha_1^8 + \frac{1}{1 \cdot 440} c_2 \alpha_2^8 + \frac{1}{1 \cdot 440} c_3 \alpha_3^8 + \frac{1}{1 \cdot 440} c_4 \alpha_4^4 + \dots$	$-\frac{28}{362\ 880}$	(*) h ^s
3. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{210}{3.628.800} - \frac{1}{192} c_1 \alpha_1^8 + \frac{1}{192} c_2 \alpha_2^8 + \frac{1}{192} c_3 \alpha_3^8 + \frac{1}{192} c_4 \alpha_4^8 + \dots$	$-\frac{210}{362.880}$	(*) h ⁹
4, h ¹⁰	$\frac{56}{3\ 628\ 800} = \frac{1}{120} c_2 \alpha_2^5 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{120} c_3 \alpha_3^5 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2\right) + \frac{1}{120} c_4 \alpha_4^5 \left(\gamma_{41} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3\right) + \dots$. <u>56</u> 362 880	h*
5. h ¹⁰ (*)	$= \frac{420}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} \cdot \frac{1}{96} c_1 \cdot \alpha_1^8 + \frac{1}{96} c_2 \cdot \alpha_2^8 + \frac{1}{96} c_3 \cdot \alpha_3^8 + \frac{1}{96} c_4 \cdot \alpha_4^8 + \dots$	$-\frac{420}{362-800}$	(*) h ⁹
6. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{560}{3.628.800} = \frac{1}{12} c_2 \alpha_2^{\frac{5}{2}} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{12} c_3 \alpha_3^{\frac{5}{2}} (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2) + \frac{1}{12} c_4 \alpha_4^{\frac{5}{2}} (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3) + \dots$	= <u>560</u> 362 880	(*) h ⁹
7. b ¹⁰	$= \frac{70}{3028800} \times \frac{1}{48} c_2 \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{48} c_2 \alpha_3^4 + (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{48} c_4 \alpha_4^4 + (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots$	70 362 880	h ³
B. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{70}{628 \cdot 800} + \frac{1}{48} c_2 \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{48} c_2 \alpha_3^4 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_{21}^2 + \frac{1}{48} c_4 \alpha_4^4 \left(\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2\right) + \dots$	$\frac{70}{362.880}$	(*) b*
9. h ¹⁸ (*)	$\frac{-\frac{105}{3-628-800}}{-\frac{1}{384}} \cdot c_1 \alpha_1^8 + \frac{1}{384} \cdot c_2 \alpha_2^8 + \frac{1}{384} \cdot c_3 \alpha_3^8 + \frac{1}{384} \cdot c_4 \alpha_4^8 + \dots$	$-\frac{105}{362.880}$	(*) h ^g
10. h ¹⁰ (*)	$= \frac{-840}{3-628-800} - \frac{1}{8} c_2 \alpha_2^8 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{8} c_3 \alpha_3^8 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 \right) + \frac{1}{8} c_4 \alpha_4^8 \left(\gamma_{41} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3 \right) + \dots$	$\frac{840}{362 880}$	(*) h ⁹
f1. h ¹⁰	$= \frac{280}{3.628.800} = \frac{1}{4} c_2 \alpha_2^2 (\gamma_{21} \alpha_1)^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2)^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3)^2 + \dots$	$-\frac{280}{362\ 880}$	h ³
12. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{-420}{3 \cdot 629 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{8} c_2 \cdot \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{8} c_3 \cdot \alpha_2^4 \cdot (\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{8} c_4 \cdot \alpha_4^4 \cdot (\gamma_{41} \cdot \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \cdot \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \cdot \alpha_3^2) + \dots$	$=\frac{420}{362 880}$	(*) h ⁹
13. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{-\frac{420}{3}}{3628\times 800} = \frac{1}{8} c_2 \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{8} c_3 \alpha_3^4 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{8} c_4 \alpha_4^4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots$	$-\frac{420}{362\ 880}$	(*) h ⁹
14. h ¹⁰	$\frac{56}{3628800} \frac{1}{36} c_2 \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{36} c_3 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^3) + \frac{1}{36} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^3) + \dots$	$=\frac{56}{362.880}$	h ³
15. h ^{f0} (*)	$\frac{168}{3(628(800))} = \frac{1}{12} c_2 \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{12} c_3 \alpha_3^3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^3) + \frac{1}{12} c_4 \alpha_4^3 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^3) + \dots$	$=\frac{168}{362 \ 880}$	(*) h ⁹
16. h ¹⁰	$= \frac{56}{3.628 \times 800} + \frac{1}{6} c_3 \alpha_3^3 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{6} c_4 \alpha_4^3 \left[\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 \right) \right] + \dots$	$=\frac{56}{362\ 880}$	h ⁸
17. h ¹⁰ (°)	$\frac{280}{3(628)800} + \frac{1}{4}c_2\alpha_2^2(\gamma_{21}\alpha_1)^2 + \frac{1}{4}c_3\alpha_3^2(\gamma_{31}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{32}\alpha_2)^2 + \frac{1}{4}c_4\alpha_4^2(\gamma_{41}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{42}\alpha_2 + \gamma_{43}\alpha_3)^2 + \dots$	= 280 362 880	(*) h ⁹
18. h ^{‡0} (*)	$\frac{210}{3.628.800} \times \frac{1}{16} c_2 \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{16} c_3 \alpha_3^4 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{16} c_4 \alpha_4^4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots$	$=\frac{210}{362\ 880}$	(*) h ⁹
19. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{210}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 880} + \frac{1}{16} c_2 \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{16} c_3 \alpha_3^4 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \frac{1}{16} c_4 \alpha_4^4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2) + \dots$	$=\frac{210}{362\ 880}$	(*) h ^p
20. h ¹⁰	$\frac{280}{3.628 \times 800} - \frac{1}{2} c_2 \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2) (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \dots$	= 280 362 880	h ⁹
21. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{280}{3.628.800} = \frac{1}{2} c_2 \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{33} \alpha_2) (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2) + \dots$	= 280 362 880	(*) h ^g
22. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{168}{3\ 628\ 800} = \frac{1}{12} c_2 \alpha_2^{\frac{3}{2}} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^{\frac{3}{2}} + \frac{1}{12} c_3 \alpha_3^{\frac{3}{2}} (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^{\frac{3}{2}} + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^{\frac{3}{2}}) + \frac{1}{12} c_4 \alpha_4^{\frac{3}{2}} (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^{\frac{3}{2}} + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^{\frac{3}{2}} + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^{\frac{3}{2}}) + \dots$	$=\frac{168}{362\ 880}$	(*) h ⁹
23. h ^{te} (*)	$\frac{504}{3\ 628\ 800} + \frac{1}{4} c_2 \ \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{21} \ \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \ \alpha_3^3 \ (\gamma_{31} \ \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \ \alpha_2^3) + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \ \alpha_4^3 \ (\gamma_{41} \ \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3^3) + \dots$	= 504 362 880	(*) h ^{\$}
24. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{168}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{2} \cdot c_3 \cdot \alpha_3^3 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{2} \cdot c_4 \cdot \alpha_4^3 \cdot \left[\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \cdot \left(\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2 \right) \right] + \dots$	$-\frac{168}{362\ 880}$	(*) h ⁹
25. h ¹⁰	$\frac{28}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{48} c_2 \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{48} c_3 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^4) + \frac{1}{48} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^4) + \dots$	$=\frac{28}{362\ 880}$	h ⁹
26. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{168}{3\ 628\ 800} = \frac{1}{8} c_2 \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{8} c_3 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^4) + \frac{1}{8} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^4) + \ldots$	$=\frac{168}{362\ 880}$	(*) hs

	x c _x , c' _x	×	
27. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{84}{3.628.800} \cdot \frac{1}{16} c_2 \alpha_2^2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{16} c_3 \alpha_3^2 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^4) + \frac{1}{16} c_4 \alpha_4^2 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^4) + \dots$	84 362 880	(*) h ^a
28. h ¹⁰	$\frac{-112}{3-628-800} - \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4^2 \left\{ \gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 \right) \right\} + \dots$	112 362 880	h ⁶
29. h ¹⁰	$\frac{28}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{4} c_{3} \alpha_{3}^{2} + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2} + \frac{1}{4} c_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} \left(\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2} + \gamma_{43} \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_{1}^{2} + \gamma_{32} \alpha_{2}^{2} \right) \right) + \dots$	28 362 880	h ⁹
30. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{28}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{4} c_{3} \alpha_{3}^{2} + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2} + \frac{1}{4} c_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} \left[\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_{1}^{2} + \gamma_{43} \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_{1}^{2} + \gamma_{32} \alpha_{2}^{2} \right) \right] + \dots$	28 362 880	(*) h ^q
31. h ¹⁰	$\frac{56}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{6} \cdot \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{6} \cdot \alpha_2 \cdot (\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2) \cdot (\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2^3) + \dots$	- <u>56</u> 362 880	h*
32. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{168}{3-628-800} = \frac{1}{2} \left(\mathbf{e_2} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{2} \left(\mathbf{e_3} + (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2) + (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^3) + \dots \right)$	168 362 880	(*) h ⁹
33. h ¹⁰	$\frac{35}{3-628-800} - \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_2 (\gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \mathbf{c}_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43}$	35 362 886	hª
34. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{70}{3-628-800} - \frac{1}{4} c_2 \left(\gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2\right)^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_3 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2\right)^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \left(\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2\right)^2 + .$	70 362 880	(*) h ^s
35. h ¹⁰	$\frac{56}{3-628-800} - c_3 - (\gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{32}\alpha_2) - \gamma_{22} + \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + c_4 - (\gamma_{41}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{42}\alpha_2 + \gamma_{43}\alpha_3) [\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{43}(\gamma_{31}\alpha_1 + \gamma_{32}\alpha_2)] + \dots$	362 880	h ³
36. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{35}{3(628)800} = \frac{1}{8} \left(c_2 \left(\gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2\right)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \left(c_3 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2\right)^2 + \frac{1}{8} \left(c_4 \left(\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2\right)^2 + \dots \right) \right)$	35 362 880	(*) h ^a
37. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{28}{3\cdot628\cdot800} - \frac{1}{48}c_{2}\alpha_{2}^{2} + \gamma_{21}\alpha_{1}^{4} + \frac{1}{48}c_{3}\alpha_{3}^{2} + (\gamma_{31}\alpha_{1}^{4} + \gamma_{32}\alpha_{2}^{4}) + \frac{1}{48}c_{4}\alpha_{4}^{2} + (\gamma_{41}\alpha_{1}^{4} + \gamma_{42}\alpha_{2}^{4} + \gamma_{43}\alpha_{3}^{4}) + \dots$	28 362 880	(*) h ^s
38. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{168}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} - \frac{1}{8} c_2 \cdot \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{8} c_3 \cdot \alpha_3^4 \cdot (\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2^4) + \frac{1}{8} c_4 \cdot \alpha_4^2 \cdot (\gamma_{41} \cdot \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{42} \cdot \alpha_2^4 + \gamma_{43} \cdot \alpha_3^4) + \dots$	362 880	(*) h*
39. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{84}{3-628-800} = \frac{1}{16} \; c_2 \; \alpha_2^2 \; \cdot \; \gamma_{21} \; \alpha_3^4 \; + \; \frac{1}{16} \; c_3 \; \alpha_3^2 \; \; (\gamma_{31} \; \alpha_1^4 \; + \; \gamma_{32} \; \alpha_2^4) \; + \; \frac{1}{16} \; c_4 \; \alpha_4^2 \; \; (\gamma_{41} \; \alpha_1^4 \; + \; \gamma_{42} \; \alpha_2^4 \; + \; \gamma_{43} \; \alpha_3^4) \; + \; \dots$	$\frac{84}{362-880}$	(*) h ^s
40. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{-112}{3-628-800} + \frac{1}{2} \cdot c_3 \cdot \alpha_3^2 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{2} \cdot c_4 \cdot \alpha_4^2 \cdot \left[\gamma_{42} \cdot \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \cdot \alpha_3 \cdot \left(\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2 \right) \right] + \dots$	362 880	(*) h ⁸
41. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{28}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{4} \cdot c_3 \cdot \alpha_3^2 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{4} \cdot c_4 \cdot \alpha_4^2 \cdot \left(\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \cdot \left(\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2^2\right)\right) + \dots$	28 362 880	(*) h ^a
42. h ^{te} (*)	$\frac{28}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{4} c_3 \cdot \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \cdot \alpha_1^2 \cdot \gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \cdot (\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2^2) + \dots$	= \frac{28}{362 880}	(*) h ⁹
43. h ¹⁰	$\frac{8}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{120} c_2 \alpha_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^5 + \frac{1}{120} c_3 \alpha_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^5) + \frac{1}{120} c_4 \alpha_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^5 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^5) + \dots$	8 362 880 80	h ⁸
44, h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{80}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{12} c_2 \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^5 + \frac{1}{12} c_3 \alpha_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^5) + \frac{1}{12} c_4 \alpha_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^5 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^5) + \dots$	80 362 880	(*) h ³
45. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{120}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{8} c_2 \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^5 + \frac{1}{8} c_3 \alpha_3 \cdot (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^5) + \frac{1}{8} c_4 \alpha_4 \cdot (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^5 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_2^5) + \dots$	$=\frac{120}{362880}$	(*) h ⁹
46. h ¹⁰	$\frac{80}{3.628.800} \cdot \frac{1}{2} c_{3} \alpha_{3} \cdot \gamma_{32} \alpha_{2}^{2} \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_{1} + \frac{1}{2} c_{4} \alpha_{4} \left[\gamma_{42} \alpha_{2}^{2} \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_{1} + \gamma_{43} \alpha_{3}^{2} \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_{1} + \gamma_{32} \alpha_{2} \right) \right] + \dots$	= 80 362 880	h ³

	x	×	
47. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{80}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{2} \cdot c_3 \cdot \alpha_3 \cdot \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2^2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{2} \cdot c_4 \cdot \alpha_4 \cdot \left[\gamma_{42} \cdot \alpha_2^2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \cdot \alpha_3^2 \cdot (\gamma_{51} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2) \right] + \dots$	= \frac{80}{362 880}	(*) h ⁹
44. h ¹⁰	$\frac{40}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} - \frac{1}{2} \cdot c_3 \cdot \alpha_3 \cdot \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} \cdot c_4 \cdot \alpha_4 \cdot \left[\gamma_{42} \cdot \alpha_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{45} \cdot \alpha_3 \cdot (\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2^2) \right] + \dots$	$=\frac{40}{362\ 880}$	h ⁹
49. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{40}{3\ 628\ 800} - \frac{1}{2} c_3 \alpha_3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 \alpha_4 \left[\gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 \right) \right] + \dots$	$=\frac{40}{362 \ 880}$	(*) h ⁹
50. h ¹⁶	$\frac{8}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{6} \cdot c_3 \cdot \alpha_3 \cdot \gamma_{32} \cdot \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{6} \cdot c_4 \cdot \alpha_4 \cdot (\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{43} \cdot (\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2^3)) + \dots$	= 8 362 880	h ⁹
51. h ^{f0} (*)	$=\frac{24}{3\ 628\ 800}-\frac{1}{2}c_3\ \alpha_3+\gamma_{32}+\gamma_{21}\alpha_1^3+\frac{1}{2}c_4\ \alpha_4\ [\gamma_{42}+\gamma_{21}\alpha_1^3+\gamma_{43}\ (\gamma_{31}\alpha_1^3+\gamma_{32}\alpha_2^3)]+\ldots$	$=\frac{24}{362 880}$	(*) h ³
52. h ¹⁰	$\frac{8}{3\ 628\ 800} - c_{4}\ \alpha_{4} + \gamma_{43} + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21}\ \alpha_{1} + c_{5}\ \alpha_{5}\ \{\gamma_{53} + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21}\ \alpha_{1} + \gamma_{54}\ \{\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21}\ \alpha_{1} + \gamma_{45}\ \{\gamma_{31}\ \alpha_{1} + \gamma_{32}\ \alpha_{2}\}\}\} + \dots$	$=\frac{8}{362\ 880}$	h ³
53. h ¹⁰	$\frac{1}{3.628.800} \cdot \frac{1}{720} c_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^6 + \frac{1}{720} c_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^6 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^6) + \frac{1}{720} c_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^6 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^6 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^6) + \dots$	$=\frac{1}{362\ 880}$	h ⁹
54. h ¹⁶ (*)	$\frac{15}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{48} c_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^6 + \frac{1}{48} c_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^6 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^6) + \frac{1}{48} c_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^6 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^6 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^6) + \dots$	$=\frac{15}{362\ 880}$	(*) h ⁵
55. h ¹⁰ (*)	$= \frac{45}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{16} c_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^6 + \frac{1}{16} c_3 (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^6 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^6) + \frac{1}{16} c_4 (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^6 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^6 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^6) + \dots$	$\frac{45}{362880}$	(*) h ⁹
56. h ¹⁰	$= \frac{20}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{6} \cdot c_3 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{6} \cdot c_4 + \gamma_{42} \cdot \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \cdot \alpha_3^3 + (\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2) + \dots$	$-\frac{20}{362\ 880}$	h ⁴
57. h ^{‡0} (3)	$ \frac{15}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} + \frac{1}{48} c_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^6 + \frac{1}{48} c_3 \cdot (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^5 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^6) + \frac{1}{48} c_4 \cdot (\gamma_{41} \alpha_1^6 + \gamma_{42} \alpha_2^6 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_2^6) + \dots $	$-\frac{15}{362\ 880}$	(*) h ⁹
58. h ¹⁰ (*)	$= \frac{60}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} + \frac{1}{2} \cdot c_3 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + \frac{1}{2} \cdot c_4 \cdot \left[\gamma_{42} \cdot \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \cdot \alpha_3^3 \cdot \left(\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2 \right) \right] + \dots$	$\frac{60}{362880}$	(*) h ⁹
59. h ¹⁰	$ \frac{3}{3} \frac{45}{628} \frac{1}{800} = \frac{1}{4} c_3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \left[\gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 \right) \right] + \dots $	$=\frac{15}{362\ 880}$	h ⁹
60. h ¹⁰ (*)	$=\frac{15}{3.62\times800}=\frac{1}{4}c_3+\gamma_{32}\alpha_2^2+\gamma_{21}\alpha_1^2+\frac{1}{4}c_4\left\{\gamma_{42}\alpha_2^2+\gamma_{21}\alpha_1^2+\gamma_{43}\alpha_3^2\left(\gamma_{31}\alpha_1^2+\gamma_{32}\alpha_2^2\right)\right\}+\dots$	$-\frac{15}{362\ 880}$	(*) h³
61. h ¹⁰	$\frac{10}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{2} c_3 + \gamma_{32} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_1)^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_4 [\gamma_{42} (\gamma_{21} \alpha_1)^2 + \gamma_{43} (\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2)^2] + \dots$	$=\frac{10}{362\ 880}$	h ₉
62. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{15}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{4} c_3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{24} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \left[\gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{24} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2 \left(\gamma_{34} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 \right) \right] + \dots$	$-\frac{15}{362\ 880}$	(*) h ⁹
63. h ^{to} (*)	$\frac{15}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{4} c_3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{4} c_4 \left[\gamma_{42} \alpha_2^2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3^2 \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 \right) \right] + \dots$	$-\frac{15}{362\ 880}$	(*) h ⁹
64. h ⁴⁰	$\frac{6}{3.628.800} = \frac{1}{6} c_3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{6} c_4 \left[\gamma_{42} \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3 \left(\gamma_{21} \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^3 \right) \right] + \dots$	$=\frac{6}{362\ 880}$	h ⁹
65. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{18}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} \cdot \frac{1}{2} \cdot c_3 \cdot \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^3 + \frac{1}{2} \cdot c_4 \cdot \gamma_{42} \cdot \alpha_2 + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{43} \cdot \alpha_3 \cdot (\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1^3 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2^3)] + \dots$	$=\frac{18}{362.880}$	(*) h ⁹
66. h ¹⁰	$\frac{6}{3\ 628\ 800} = c_4 + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + c_5 \left\{ \gamma_{53} \alpha_3 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{54} \alpha_4 \left[\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{43} \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 \right) \right] \right\} + \dots$	$=\frac{6}{362\ 880}$	h ⁹
67. h ¹⁰	$\frac{1}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{24} \cdot c_3 + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{24} \cdot c_4 \cdot \left[\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{43} \cdot \left(\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{32} \cdot \alpha_2^4 \right) \right] + \dots$	= 1 362 880	h ⁹
68. h ¹⁸ (*)	$\frac{6}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{4} \cdot c_3 + \gamma_{52} + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{4} \cdot c_4 \cdot \left[\gamma_{47} + \gamma_{21} \cdot \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{45} \cdot \left[\gamma_{31} \cdot \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{37} \cdot \alpha_2^4 \right] \right] + \dots$	$=\frac{6}{362\ 880}$	(*) h ⁹
69. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{3}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{8} c_3 \cdot \gamma_{32} \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^4 + \frac{1}{8} c_4 \left[\gamma_{42} \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{43} \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^4 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^4 \right) \right] + \dots$	$=\frac{3}{362\ 880}$	(*) h ⁹
70. h ¹⁰	$\frac{4}{3\ 628\ 800} = c_{4} \cdot \gamma_{43} \cdot \gamma_{32} \alpha_{2} \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_{1} + c_{5} \left\{ \gamma_{53} \cdot \gamma_{32} \alpha_{2} \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_{1} + \gamma_{54} \left[\gamma_{42} \alpha_{2} \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_{1} + \gamma_{43} \alpha_{2} \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_{1} + \gamma_{32} \alpha_{2} \right) \right] \right\} + \dots$	= 4 362 880	h ⁹
71. h ¹⁰	$\frac{1}{3 \cdot 628 \cdot 800} = \frac{1}{2} c_4 + \gamma_{43} + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_5 \left\{ \gamma_{53} + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{54} \left[\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 \right) \right] \right\} + \dots$	= 1 362 880	h ⁹
72. h ¹⁰ (*)	$\frac{1}{3 \ 628 \ 800} = \frac{1}{2} c_4 + \gamma_{43} + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \frac{1}{2} c_5 \left\{ \gamma_{53} + \gamma_{32} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{54} \left[\gamma_{42} + \gamma_{21} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{43} \left(\gamma_{31} \alpha_1^2 + \gamma_{32} \alpha_2^2 \right) \right] \right\} + \dots$	= 1 362 880	(*) h ⁹

TABLE 2. REDUCED EQUATIONS OF CONDITION FOR EIGHTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 8(9)

	x	x	
h²	$\frac{1}{2} = c_0 + c_4 + c_5 + c_6 + c_7 + c_8 + c_3 + c_{10}$	= 1	h
h ³	$\frac{1}{6} = c_4 \alpha_4 + c_5 \alpha_5 + c_6 \alpha_8 + c_7 \alpha_7 + c_8 \alpha_8 + c_9 \alpha_9 + c_{10}$	= 1/2	h²
h ⁴	$\frac{1}{12} - c_4 \alpha_4^2 + c_5 \alpha_5^2 + c_6 \alpha_6^2 + c_7 \alpha_7^2 + c_6 \alpha_8^2 + c_9 \alpha_5^2 + c_{10}$	= \frac{1}{3}	h ³
h ⁵	$\frac{1}{20} = c_4 \alpha_4^3 + c_5 \alpha_5^3 + c_6 \alpha_6^3 + c_7 \alpha_7^3 + c_8 \alpha_8^3 + c_9 \alpha_5^3 + c_{10}$	= 1/4	h ⁴
h ⁶	$\frac{1}{30} = c_4 \alpha_4^4 + c_5 \alpha_5^4 + c_6 \alpha_6^4 + c_7 \alpha_7^6 + c_8 \alpha_8^4 + c_9 \alpha_9^6 + c_{10}$	= \frac{1}{5}	h ⁵
h ⁷	$\frac{1}{42} = c_4 \alpha_4^5 + c_5 \alpha_5^5 + c_6 \alpha_8^5 + c_7 \alpha_7^5 + c_8 \alpha_8^5 + c_9 \alpha_5^5 + c_{10}$	= \frac{1}{6}	h ⁶
h8	$\frac{1}{56} = c_4 \alpha_4^6 + c_5 \alpha_5^6 + c_8 \alpha_6^6 + c_7 \alpha_7^5 + c_8 \alpha_8^6 + c_3 \alpha_5^6 + c_{10}$	= 1 /7	h ⁷
h ⁹	$\frac{1}{72} = c_4 \alpha_4^7 + c_5 \alpha_5^7 + c_6 \alpha_6^7 + c_7 \alpha_7^7 + c_6 \alpha_8^7 + c_9 \alpha_9^7 + c_{10}$	$\frac{1}{8}$	h ⁸
h ⁸	$\begin{split} \frac{1}{1.680} &= c_4 \ P_{44} + c_5 \ P_{54} + c_6 \ P_{64} + c_7 \ P_{74} + c_8 \ P_{84} + c_3 \ P_{74} + c_{10} \ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} P_{104} \\ \frac{1}{30} \end{array} \right\} \\ &= c_4 \ P_{44} + c_5 \ P_{54} + c_6 \ P_{64} + c_7 \ P_{74} + c_8 \ P_{84} + c_5 \ P_{54} + c_{10} + P_{104} \end{split}$	$-\frac{1}{210}$	h ⁷
h³	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$=\frac{1}{240}$	h ⁸
h ⁹	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	- <u>1</u> 336	h ⁸

TABLE 3. COEFFICIENTS FOR AN EIGHTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 8(9)

		T											1
٠٠*		41 840	0	0	•	34	88	280	9 280	9 35	¢	41	$TE_{z} = \frac{1}{c_{EQ}} (f_{10} - f_{13}) h^{2}$
υ¥		121 4 200	•	0	۰	43	33	140	36	31	512	550	TE, "
	10												-15
	6											756 604 839 475	512
	×										23 5 120	372 449 7 675 200	31
	7									70 609 2 073 600	53 056 229 2 123 366 400	559 511 35 817 600	e 8
	9								364 675	20 609 345 600	127 250 389 353 894 400	110 723 511 680	17
۲ , «۲	ß							50 <u>2</u> 135	2 025	79 391 518 400	2 559 686 731 530 841 600	6 399 863 2 558 400	33
	4						23 12 636	1 451	424 2 025	5 797 172 800	569 927 617 6 900 940 800	0	43
	en l					989	5 220	3 896 19 575	5 504	0	5 345 280	63 826 445 875	0
	2				18 125 190 512	809 609	5 050 641 277	2 384 000 641 277	0	0	548 042 275 109 444 608	604 400 324 597	0
	1			4 500	625 11 907	¢	0	٥	0	0	0	0	0
	0		49 12 800	49	16 825 381 024	23 840	533 68 040	4 469	694 10 125	30 203 691 200	1 040 381 917 14 863 564 800	33 213 637 179 088 000	121
a*		0	80	40	12	718	~ ·	#IB	318	ω l ω	12	-	-
	*	٥		81	m	4	ro.	9	1-	oc	6	9	11

TABLE 4. ERROR COEFFICIENTS FOR RKN 8(9) OF TABLE 3

$T_{29} = \frac{1}{8} (c_4 P_{45} + c_5 P_{55} + \ldots) - \frac{1}{24 \ 192} \approx 0.000 \ 000 \ 096 \ 588$
$\dot{T}_{10} = rac{1}{48} \; (\dot{c_4} \; lpha_4^8 + \dot{c_5} \; lpha_5^8 + \ldots) \; -rac{1}{432} pprox 0.000 \; 000 \; 535 \; 837$
$\dot{T}_{26} = rac{1}{8} \; (\dot{c_4} \; lpha_4^2 \; P_{44} + \dot{c_5} \; lpha_5^2 \; P_{54} + \ldots) \; - rac{1}{2 \; 160} \; pprox 0.000 \; 000 \; 004 \; 019$
$\dot{T}_{45} = rac{1}{8} \; (\dot{c_4} \; lpha_4 \; P_{45} + \dot{c_5} \; lpha_5 \; P_{55} + \ldots) \; -rac{1}{3 \; 024} pprox 0.000 \; 000 \; 616 \; 351$
$ \frac{\cdot}{\Gamma_{51}} = \frac{1}{2} \left[\dot{c_4} \ \alpha_4 \ (\gamma_{42} \ P_{23} + \gamma_{43} \ P_{33}) + \dot{c_5} \ \alpha_5 \ (\gamma_{52} \ P_{23} + \gamma_{53} \ P_{33} + \gamma_{54} \ P_{43}) + \ldots \right] - \frac{1}{15 \ 120} \approx 0.000 \ 000 \ 092 \ 283 $
$\dot{T}_{52} = \frac{1}{6} \left\{ \dot{c_4} \ \alpha_4 \ \gamma_{43} \ \cdot \ \gamma_{32} \ \alpha_2^3 + \dot{c_5} \ \alpha_5 \ \left[\gamma_{53} \ \cdot \ \gamma_{32} \ \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{54} \ \left(\gamma_{52} \ \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{53} \ \alpha_3^3 \right) \right] + \ldots \right\} - \frac{1}{45 \ 360} \approx -0.000 \ 000 \ 043 \ 977$
$\dot{T}_{58} = \frac{1}{12} \left(\dot{c_4} P_{46} + \dot{c_5} P_{56} + \ldots \right) - \frac{1}{6 048} \approx - 0. 000 008 515$
$\dot{T}_{68} = \frac{1}{4} \left[\dot{c}_5 \ \gamma_{54} \ P_{44} + \dot{c}_6 \left(\gamma_{64} \ P_{44} + \gamma_{65} \ P_{54} \right) + \ldots \right] - \frac{1}{60 \ 480} \approx -0.000 \ 000 \ 000 \ 332$

TABLE 5. REDUCED EQUATIONS OF CONDITION FOR SEVENTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 7(8)

	x	×	
h ²	$\frac{1}{2} = \mathbf{c}_0 + \mathbf{c}_3 + \mathbf{c}_4 + \mathbf{c}_5 + \mathbf{c}_6 + \mathbf{c}_7 + \mathbf{c}_8$	= 1	h
h ³	$\frac{1}{6} = c_3 \alpha_3 + c_4 \alpha_4 + c_5 \alpha_5 + c_6 \alpha_6 + c_7 \alpha_7 + c_8$	$=\frac{1}{2}$	h ²
h ⁴	$\frac{1}{12} = c_3 \alpha_3^2 + c_4 \alpha_4^2 + c_5 \alpha_5^2 + c_6 \alpha_6^2 + c_7 \alpha_7^2 + c_8$	$=\frac{1}{3}$	h ³
h ⁵	$\frac{1}{20} = c_3 \alpha_3^3 + c_4 \alpha_4^3 + c_5 \alpha_5^3 + c_6 \alpha_6^3 + c_7 \alpha_7^3 + c_8$	$=\frac{1}{4}$	h ⁴
h ⁶	$\frac{1}{30} = \mathbf{c_3} \ \alpha_3^4 + \mathbf{c_4} \ \alpha_4^4 + \mathbf{c_5} \ \alpha_5^4 + \mathbf{c_6} \ \alpha_6^4 + \mathbf{c_7} \ \alpha_7^4 + \mathbf{c_8}$	$=\frac{1}{5}$	h ⁵
h ⁷	$\frac{1}{42} = c_3 \alpha_3^5 + c_4 \alpha_4^5 + c_5 \alpha_5^5 + c_6 \alpha_6^5 + c_7 \alpha_7^5 + c_8$	$=\frac{1}{6}$	h ⁶
h ⁸	$\frac{1}{56} = c_3 \alpha_3^6 + c_4 \alpha_4^6 + c_5 \alpha_5^6 + c_6 \alpha_6^6 + c_7 \alpha_7^6 + c_8$	$=\frac{1}{7}$	h ⁷
h ⁸	$\frac{1}{1 \ 680} = c_3 P_{34} + c_4 P_{44} + c_5 P_{54} + c_6 P_{64} + c_7 P_{74} + c_8 \frac{1}{30}$	4	
	$\dot{c}_3 P_{34} + \dot{c}_4 P_{44} + \dot{c}_5 P_{54} + c_6 P_{64} + \dot{c}_7 P_{74} + \dot{c}_8 P_{84}$	$= \frac{1}{210}$	h ⁷

TABLE 6. COEFFICIENTS FOR A SEVENTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 7(8)

•0*		23 016	=	,	0	3 969	2 016	3 024	1 008	4 225	18 144	- 11 (fg - fg) h ²
ວ ໌		67 2 016	5		9	3 969	252	425 3 024	77.5	625	11 4 536	TE 4 2
	ń											11 4 536
	t-										2 551 784 579 47 000 140 500	625
	9									15 029 253 125	1 641 775 937 176 250 525 000	- 12 - 12
	ç								3 040 200	1 995 658 47 503 125	9 676 095 011 39 166 784 000	425 3 024
7,47	-7		_					467 8 100	4 753	104 130 509 855 056 250	32 963 694 031 528 751 554 000	25 252
	9						311	13	1 299 964 14 060 925	51 962 281 585 871 875	g.	3 969
	24					4 729 200	157 640	55 319 221	o o	1 650 359 2 992 696 875	206 360 699	o
	-				343	1 125 342 304	1125	H 375	6 375	1 125 791 578	Ð	e
	0			361 281 250	10 437 7 600	319 200	74 9 975	1 028 29 925	145 349 19 254 600	116 719 112 18 953 746 575	604 055 892 451 4 935 014 784 000	67 2 u16
2			>	375	- e	-1 S	-110	:1 10	m 10	#1:0	-	-
		1 .		-	74	 	-1	'n	و	t-	æ	zs.

TABLE 7. ERROR COEFFICIENTS FOR RKN 7(8) OF TABLE 6.

$T_{15} = \frac{1}{4} (c_3 P_{34} + c_4 P_{44} + \dots) - \frac{1}{6 720} \approx -0.000 000 774$	$\dot{ m T}_6 = rac{1}{24} \; (\dot{c_3} \; lpha_3^7 + \dot{c_4} \; lpha_4^7 + \ldots) \; -rac{1}{192} pprox 0.000 \; 003 \; 492$	$\dot{\mathbf{T}}_{15} = rac{1}{12} \left[\dot{c}_3 \; lpha_3^2 \; \cdot \; \gamma_{32} \; lpha_2^3 + \dot{c}_4 \; lpha_4^2 \; (\gamma_{42} \; lpha_2^3 + \gamma_{43} \; lpha_3^3) + \ldots ight] - rac{1}{1 \; 920} \; pprox \; 0. \; 000 \; 000 \; 348$	$\dot{ ext{T}}_{22} = rac{1}{4} \; (\dot{c_3} \; lpha_3 \; ext{P}_{34} + \dot{c_4} \; lpha_4 \; ext{P}_{44} + \ldots) \; -rac{1}{960} pprox \; 0. \; 000 \; 000 \; 131$	$\dot{T}_{25} = rac{1}{2} \left[\dot{c_3} \; lpha_3 \; \gamma_{32} \; P_{22} + \dot{c_4} \; lpha_4 \; (\gamma_{42} \; P_{22} + \gamma_{43} \; P_{32}) \; + \ldots ight] - rac{1}{5 \; 760} pprox - 0.000 \; 000 \; 014$	$\dot{T}_{29} = rac{1}{8} \ (\dot{c_3} \ P_{35} + \dot{c_4} \ P_{45} + \dots) - rac{1}{2 \ 688} \approx -0.000 \ 002 \ 667$	$\dot{T}_{36} = \frac{1}{6} \left\{ \dot{c_4} \ \gamma_{43} \ \cdot \ \gamma_{32} \ \alpha_2^3 + \dot{c_5} \ [\gamma_{53} \ \cdot \ \gamma_{32} \ \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{54} \ (\gamma_{42} \ \alpha_2^3 + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_3^3)] + \ldots \right\} - \frac{1}{40 \ \ 320} \approx - \ 0. \ 000 \ \ 000 \ \ 177$
T ₁₅ =	. T	$\dot{T}_{15} =$	T ₂₂ =	T ₂₅ ==	T. 29 =	$T_{36} =$

TABLE 8. REDUCED EQUATIONS OF CONDITION FOR SIXTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 6(7)

	х 🕶	с _к , с̂	×	
h ²	<u>1</u> 2	$= c_0 + c_2 + c_3 + c_4 + c_5 + c_6$	= 1	h
h ³	$\frac{1}{6}$	$= \mathbf{c_2} \alpha_2 + \mathbf{c_3} \alpha_3 + \mathbf{c_4} \alpha_4 + \mathbf{c_5} \alpha_5 + \mathbf{c_6}$	$=\frac{1}{2}$	h ²
h ⁴	$\frac{1}{12}$	$= c_2 \alpha_2^2 + c_3 \alpha_3^2 + c_4 \alpha_4^2 + c_5 \alpha_5^2 + c_6$	$=\frac{1}{3}$	h ³
h ⁵	$\frac{1}{20}$	$= c_2 \alpha_2^3 + c_3 \alpha_3^3 + c_4 \alpha_4^3 + c_5 \alpha_5^3 + c_6$	$=\frac{1}{4}$	h ⁴
h ⁶	$\frac{1}{30}$	$= c_2 \alpha_2^4 + c_3 \alpha_3^4 + c_4 \alpha_4^4 + c_5 \alpha_5^4 + c_6$	$=\frac{1}{5}$	${ m h}^5$
h ⁷	$\frac{1}{42}$	$= c_2 \alpha_2^5 + c_3 \alpha_3^5 + c_4 \alpha_4^5 + c_5 \alpha_5^5 + c_6$	$=\frac{1}{6}$	h ⁶
h ⁷	<u>1</u> 840	$= c_2 P_{23} + c_3 P_{33} + c_4 P_{43} + c_5 P_{53} + c_6 \cdot \frac{1}{20}$ $\dot{c}_2 P_{23} + \dot{c}_3 P_{33} + \dot{c}_4 P_{43} + \dot{c}_5 P_{53} + \dot{c}_6 P_{63}$	$=\frac{1}{120}$	h ⁶

TABLE 9. COEFFICIENTS FOR A SIXTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 6(7)

.o.		19 288	0	25 96	25	25 144	25 96	19 288	$TE_{x} = \frac{11}{2016} (f_{g} - f_{f}) h^{2}$
o _x		61 1 008	0	475 2 016	25 504	125 1 008	$\frac{25}{1\ 008}$	11 2 016	$TE_{\mathbf{x}} = \frac{11}{2 \ 01}$
	9								11 2 016
	2							157	25 1 008
	4						006 68	219 456	125 1 008
7, κλ	က					900	$-\frac{119}{1\ 200}$	- 37	25 504
	7				4 75	$\frac{9}{100}$	47 120	0	$\frac{475}{2 016}$
				$\frac{1}{75}$	0	0	- 19 - 150	<u>17</u> 38	0
	0		$\frac{1}{200}$	$\frac{1}{150}$	2 75	9 200	199 3 600	- 179 - 1 824	61 1 008
g		0	$\frac{1}{10}$	<u>1</u>	215	വിധ	41 to	=	
	7	0	Ħ	23	က	4	5	9	7

TABLE 10. ERROR COEFFICIENTS FOR RKN 6(7) OF TABLE 9

$$\begin{split} T_{3} &= \frac{1}{2} \left(c_{2} \ P_{23} + c_{3} \ P_{33} + c_{4} \ P_{43} + c_{5} \ P_{53} + c_{6} \ P_{63} \right) - \frac{1}{1 \ 680} \approx -0.000 \ 014 \ 909 \\ \\ \dot{T}_{6} &= \frac{1}{12} \left(\dot{c}_{2} \ \alpha_{2}^{6} + \dot{c}_{3} \ \alpha_{3}^{6} + \dot{c}_{4} \ \alpha_{4}^{6} + \dot{c}_{5} \ \alpha_{5}^{6} + \dot{c}_{6} \ \alpha_{6}^{6} \right) - \frac{1}{84} \approx 0.000 \ 017 \ 460 \\ \\ \dot{T}_{43} &= \frac{1}{2} \left(\dot{c}_{2} \ \alpha_{2} \ P_{23} + \dot{c}_{3} \ \alpha_{3} \ P_{33} + \dot{c}_{4} \ \alpha_{4} \ P_{43} + \dot{c}_{5} \ \alpha_{5} \ P_{53} + \dot{c}_{6} \ \alpha_{6} \ P_{63} \right) - \frac{1}{280} \\ &\approx -0.000 \ 022 \ 614 \\ \\ \dot{T}_{44} &= \frac{1}{6} \left[\dot{c}_{3} \ \alpha_{3} + \gamma_{32} \ \alpha_{2}^{3} + \dot{c}_{4} \ \alpha_{4} \ (\gamma_{42} \ \alpha_{2}^{3} + \gamma_{43} \ \alpha_{3}^{3} \right) + \dot{c}_{5} \ \alpha_{5} \left(\gamma_{52} \ \alpha_{2}^{3} + \gamma_{53} \ \alpha_{3}^{3} + \gamma_{54} \ \alpha_{4}^{3} \right) \\ &+ \dot{c}_{6} \ \alpha_{6} \ (\gamma_{62} \ \alpha_{2}^{3} + \gamma_{63} \ \alpha_{3}^{3} + \gamma_{64} \ \alpha_{4}^{3} + \gamma_{65} \ \alpha_{5}^{3} \right) \right] - \frac{1}{840} \approx -0.000 \ 008 \ 185 \\ \\ \dot{T}_{16} &= \frac{1}{4} \left(\dot{c}_{2} \ P_{24} + \dot{c}_{3} \ P_{34} + \dot{c}_{4} \ P_{44} + \dot{c}_{5} \ P_{54} + \dot{c}_{6} \ P_{64} \right) - \frac{1}{840} \approx -0.000 \ 078 \ 323 \end{split}$$

TABLE 11. REDUCED EQUATIONS OF CONDITION FOR FIFTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 5(6)

	x • c c c c	×	
h ²	$\frac{1}{2} = c_0 + c_2 + c_3 + c_4 + c_5$	= 1	h
h ³	$\frac{1}{6} = c_2 \alpha_2 + c_3 \alpha_3 + c_4 \alpha_4 + c_5$	$=\frac{1}{2}$	h²
h ⁴	$\frac{1}{12} = c_2 \alpha_2^2 + c_3 \alpha_3^2 + c_4 \alpha_4^2 + c_5$	$=\frac{1}{3}$	h ³
h ⁵	$\frac{1}{20} = c_2 \alpha_2^3 + c_3 \alpha_3^3 + c_4 \alpha_4^3 + c_5$	$=\frac{1}{4}$	h ⁴
h ⁶	$\frac{1}{30} = c_2 \alpha_2^4 + c_3 \alpha_3^4 + c_4 \alpha_4^4 + c_5$	$=\frac{1}{5}$	h ⁵
h ⁶	$\frac{1}{360} = c_2 P_{22} + c_3 P_{32} + c_4 P_{42} + c_5 \cdot \frac{1}{12}$ $\dot{c_2} P_{22} + \dot{c_3} P_{32} + \dot{c_4} P_{42} + \dot{c_5} P_{52}$	$= \frac{1}{60}$	h ⁵

TABLE 12. COEFFICIENTS FOR A FIFTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 5(6)

	CY K				$\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$			C _K	c K
к		U	1	2	3	4	5		
0	0							$\frac{11}{240}$	1 24
1	$\frac{1}{12}$	$\frac{1}{288}$						0	U
2	$\frac{1}{6}$	$\frac{1}{216}$	$\frac{1}{108}$					108 475	$\frac{27}{95}$
3	$\frac{1}{2}$	0	0	$\frac{1}{8}$				$\frac{8}{45}$	$\frac{1}{3}$
4	$\frac{4}{5}$	$\frac{16}{125}$	O	$\frac{4}{125}$	$\frac{4}{25}$			$\frac{125}{2 \cdot 736}$	$\begin{array}{c c} 125 \\ \hline 456 \end{array}$
5	1	$-\frac{247}{1\ 152}$	0	$\frac{12}{19}$	$\frac{7}{432}$	$\frac{4\ 375}{65\ 664}$		<u>1</u> 300	$\frac{1}{15}$
G	1	$\frac{11}{240}$	0	$\frac{108}{475}$	$\frac{8}{45}$	$\frac{125}{2\cdot 736}$	$\frac{1}{300}$	$TE_{X} = \frac{1}{30}$	$\frac{1}{0} (f_5 - f_6) h^2$

TABLE 13. ERROR COEFFICIENTS FOR RKN 5(6) OF TABLE 12

$$\begin{split} & T_5 = \frac{1}{2} \left(\stackrel{\cdot}{c_2} P_{22} + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_3} P_{32} + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_4} P_{42} + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_5} P_{52} \right) - \frac{1}{720} \approx -0.000 \ 031 \ 829 \\ \\ & \dot{T}_3 = \frac{1}{8} \left(\stackrel{\cdot}{c_2} \alpha_2^5 + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_3} \alpha_3^5 + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_4} \alpha_4^5 + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_5} \alpha_5^5 \right) - \frac{1}{48} \approx 0.000 \ 034 \ 722 \\ \\ & \dot{T}_6 = \frac{1}{2} \left(\stackrel{\cdot}{c_2} \alpha_2 P_{22} + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_3} \alpha_3 P_{32} + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_4} \alpha_4 P_{42} + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_5} \alpha_5 P_{52} \right) - \frac{1}{144} \approx -0.000 \ 028 \ 935 \\ \\ & \dot{T}_9 = \frac{1}{2} \left(\stackrel{\cdot}{c_2} P_{23} + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_3} P_{33} + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_4} P_{43} + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_5} P_{53} \right) - \frac{1}{240} \approx -0.000 \ 005 \ 838 \\ \\ & \dot{T}_{10} = \frac{1}{6} \left(\stackrel{\cdot}{c_3} P_{33} + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_4} P_{43} + \stackrel{\cdot}{c_5} P_{53} \right) - \frac{1}{720} \approx -0.000 \ 002 \ 200 \end{split}$$

TABLE 14. REDUCED EQUATIONS OF CONDITION FOR FOURTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 4(5)

	х - с _к ċ _к		
h ²	$\frac{1}{2} = c_0 + c_1 + c_2 + c_3$	= 1	h
h ³	$\frac{1}{6} = \mathbf{c_1} \alpha_1 + \mathbf{c_2} \alpha_2 + \mathbf{c_3}$	$=\frac{1}{2}$	h²
h ⁴	$\frac{1}{12} = c_1 \alpha_1^2 + c_2 \alpha_2^2 + c_3$	= 1/3	h ³
h ⁵	$\frac{1}{20} = c_1 \alpha_1^3 + c_2 \alpha_2^3 + c_3$	= \frac{1}{4}	h ⁴
h ⁵	$\frac{1}{120} = \mathbf{c}_2 \cdot \gamma_{21} \alpha_1 + \mathbf{c}_3 \cdot \frac{1}{6}$		
	$\dot{c}_2 \ \gamma_{21} \ \alpha_1 + \dot{c}_3 (\gamma_{31} \ \alpha_1 + \gamma_{32} \ \alpha_2)$	$= \frac{1}{24}$	h ⁴

TABLE 15. COEFFICIENTS FOR A FOURTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 4(5)

	ακ			$\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$		e K	ċ ĸ
K		0	1	2	3		
0	0					$\frac{13}{120}$	$\frac{1}{8}$
1	$\frac{1}{3}$	$\frac{1}{18}$				$\frac{3}{10}$	$\frac{3}{8}$
2	$\frac{2}{3}$	0	$\frac{2}{9}$			$\frac{3}{40}$	$\frac{3}{8}$
3	1	$\frac{1}{3}$	0	$\frac{1}{6}$		$\frac{1}{60}$	<u>1</u> 8
4	1	$\frac{13}{120}$	$\frac{3}{10}$	$\frac{3}{40}$	$\frac{1}{60}$	$TE_{\mathbf{x}} = \frac{1}{60}$	$\frac{1}{10}$ (f ₃ - f ₄) h ²

TABLE 16. ERROR COEFFICIENTS FOR RKN 4(5) OF TABLE 15

$T_3 = c_2 P_{21} + c_3 P_{31} - \frac{1}{120} \approx -0.000 925 926$	
$\dot{T}_2 = \frac{1}{4} \left(\dot{c_1} \alpha_1^4 + \dot{c_2} \alpha_2^4 + \dot{c_3} \alpha_3^4 \right) - \frac{1}{20} \approx 0.000 925 926$	•
$\dot{\mathbf{T}}_{4} = \dot{\mathbf{c}}_{2} \ \alpha_{2} \cdot \ \mathbf{P}_{21} + \dot{\mathbf{c}}_{3} \ \alpha_{3} \ \mathbf{P}_{31} - \frac{1}{30} \approx -0.000 \ 925 \ 926$	
$\dot{T}_5 = \frac{1}{2} (\dot{c_2} P_{22} + \dot{c_3} P_{32}) - \frac{1}{120} \approx 0.000 925 926$	

TABLE 17. COEFFICIENTS FOR NYSTROM'S FOURTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 4

	$\alpha_{_{_{\it K}}}$,	$\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$	c ĸ	ċ _κ
к		0	1		
0	0			<u>1</u> 6	<u>1</u> 6
1	$\frac{1}{2}$	<u>1</u> 8		$\frac{1}{3}$	$\frac{2}{3}$
2	1	0	$\frac{1}{2}$	0	1 6

TABLE 18. ERROR COEFFICIENTS FOR NYSTROM'S FOURTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 4 OF TABLE 17

$$T_2 = \frac{1}{2} c_1 \alpha_1^3 - \frac{1}{40} \approx -0.004 \ 166 \ 667$$

$$T_3 = -\frac{1}{120} \approx -0.008 333 333$$

$$\dot{T}_2 = \frac{1}{4} \left(\dot{c_1} \ \alpha_1^4 + \dot{c_2} \ \alpha_2^4 \right) - \frac{1}{20} \approx 0.002 \ 083 \ 333$$

$$\dot{T}_4 = \dot{c_2} \ \alpha_2 \ P_{21} - \frac{1}{30} \approx 0.008 \ 333 \ 333$$

$$\dot{T}_5 = \frac{1}{2} \dot{c_2} \ P_{22} - \frac{1}{120} \approx 0.002 \ 083 \ 333$$

$$\dot{\mathbf{T}}_4 = \dot{\mathbf{c}}_2 \ \alpha_2 \ \mathbf{P}_{21} - \frac{1}{30} \approx 0.008 \ 333 \ 333$$

$$\dot{\mathbf{T}}_{5} = \frac{1}{2} \dot{\mathbf{c}}_{2} \ \mathbf{P}_{22} - \frac{1}{120} \approx \mathbf{0.002} \ 083 \ 333$$

TABLE 19. COEFFICIENTS FOR NYSTRÖM'S FIFTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 5

	α K		$\gamma_{\kappa\lambda}$		e _K	Č _K
K		0	1	2		
0	0				$\frac{1}{24}$	$\frac{1}{24}$
1	<u>1</u> 5	50			$\frac{25}{84}$	$\frac{125}{336}$
2	$\frac{2}{3}$	$-\frac{1}{27}$	$\frac{7}{27}$		$\frac{9}{56}$	27 56
3	1	3 10	$-\frac{2}{35}$	$\frac{9}{35}$	0	<u>5</u> 48

TABLE 20. ERROR COEFFICIENTS FOR NYSTROM'S FIFTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 5 OF TABLE 19

$$T_2 = \frac{1}{4} \left(c_1 \alpha_1^4 + c_2 \alpha_2^4 \right) - \frac{1}{120} \approx -0.000 \ 277 \ 778$$

$$T_5 = \frac{1}{2} c_2 P_{22} - \frac{1}{720} \approx -0.000 555 556$$

$$T_{2} = \frac{1}{4} \left(c_{1} \alpha_{1}^{4} + c_{2} \alpha_{2}^{4} \right) - \frac{1}{120} \approx -0.000 \ 277 \ 778$$

$$T_{5} = \frac{1}{2} c_{2} P_{22} - \frac{1}{720} \approx -0.000 \ 555 \ 556$$

$$\dot{T}_{3} = \frac{1}{8} \left(\dot{c}_{1} \alpha_{1}^{5} + \dot{c}_{2} \alpha_{2}^{5} + \dot{c}_{3} \alpha_{3}^{5} \right) - \frac{1}{48} \approx 0.000 \ 138 \ 889$$

$$\dot{T}_{6} = \frac{1}{2} \left(\dot{c}_{2} \alpha_{2} P_{22} + \dot{c}_{3} \alpha_{3} P_{32} \right) - \frac{1}{144} \approx 0.000 \ 555 \ 556$$

$$\dot{T}_{9} = \frac{1}{2} \left(\dot{c}_{2} P_{23} + \dot{c}_{3} P_{33} \right) - \frac{1}{240} \approx 0.000 \ 277 \ 778$$

$$\dot{T}_6 = \frac{1}{2} \left(\dot{c}_2 \alpha_2 P_{22} + \dot{c}_3 \alpha_3 P_{32} \right) - \frac{1}{144} \approx 0.000 555 556$$

$$\dot{T}_9 - \frac{1}{2} \left(\dot{c}_2 P_{23} + \dot{c}_3 P_{33} \right) - \frac{1}{240} \approx 0.000 277 778$$

TABLE 21. COEFFICIENTS FOR ALBRECHT'S SIXTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 6

	α κ		γ_{κ}	\		c ĸ	ċ _κ
λ κ		0	i	2	3		
0	0					$\frac{7}{90}$	7 90
1	$\frac{1}{4}$	$\frac{1}{32}$				$\frac{7}{90}$ $\frac{4}{15}$	$ \begin{array}{c} 16 \\ \hline 45 \\ \hline 2 \\ \hline 15 \end{array} $
2			$\frac{1}{6}$			15	$\frac{2}{15}$
3	$\begin{array}{c} \frac{1}{2} \\ \frac{3}{4} \end{array}$	$-\frac{1}{24}$ $\frac{3}{32}$	1 8	1/16		15 4 45	16 45 7 90
4	1	0	$\frac{3}{7}$	- 1/14	$\frac{1}{7}$	0	90

TABLE 22. ERROR COEFFICIENTS FOR ALBRECHT'S SIXTH-ORDER FORMULA RKN 6 OF TABLE 21

$$T_3 = \frac{1}{8} \left(c_1 \alpha_1^5 + c_2 \alpha_2^5 + c_3 \alpha_3^5 \right) - \frac{1}{336} \approx -0.000 046 503$$

$$T_4 = \frac{1}{2} (c_2 \alpha_2^2 P_{21} + c_3 \alpha_3^2 P_{31}) - \frac{1}{504} \approx -0.000074405$$

$$T_{3} = \frac{1}{8} \left(c_{1} \alpha_{1}^{5} + c_{2} \alpha_{2}^{5} + c_{3} \alpha_{3}^{5} \right) - \frac{1}{336} \approx -0.000 \ 046 \ 503$$

$$T_{4} = \frac{1}{2} \left(c_{2} \alpha_{2}^{2} P_{21} + c_{3} \alpha_{3}^{2} P_{31} \right) - \frac{1}{504} \approx -0.000 \ 074 \ 405$$

$$T_{6} = \frac{1}{2} \left(c_{2} \alpha_{2} P_{22} + c_{3} \alpha_{3} P_{32} \right) - \frac{1}{1008} \approx -0.000 \ 037 \ 202$$

$$T_{9} = \frac{1}{2} \left(c_{2} P_{23} + c_{3} P_{33} \right) - \frac{1}{1680} \approx -0.000 \ 074 \ 405$$

$$T_9 = \frac{1}{2} (c_2 P_{23} + c_3 P_{33}) - \frac{1}{1.680} \approx -0.000 074 405$$

$$T_{10} = c_3 \gamma_{32} P_{21} - \frac{1}{5.040} \approx 0.000 032 873$$

$$\dot{T}_3 = \frac{1}{16} \left(\dot{c}_1 \alpha_1^6 + \dot{c}_2 \alpha_2^6 + \dot{c}_3 \alpha_3^6 + \dot{c}_4 \alpha_4^6 \right) - \frac{1}{112} \approx 0.000 023 251$$

$$\dot{T}_{3} = \frac{1}{16} \left(\dot{c}_{1} \alpha_{1}^{6} + \dot{c}_{2} \alpha_{2}^{6} + \dot{c}_{3} \alpha_{3}^{6} + \dot{c}_{4} \alpha_{4}^{6} \right) - \frac{1}{112} \approx 0.000 \ 023 \ 251$$

$$\dot{T}_{6} = \frac{1}{2} \left(\dot{c}_{2} \alpha_{2}^{3} P_{21} + \dot{c}_{3} \alpha_{3}^{3} P_{31} + \dot{c}_{4} \alpha_{4}^{3} P_{41} \right) - \frac{1}{84} \approx 0.000 \ 074 \ 405$$

$$\dot{T}_{7} = \frac{1}{4} \left(\dot{c}_{2} \alpha_{2}^{2} P_{22} + \dot{c}_{3} \alpha_{3}^{2} P_{32} + \dot{c}_{4} \alpha_{4}^{2} P_{42} \right) - \frac{1}{336} \approx 0.000 \ 018 \ 601$$

$$\dot{T}_7 = \frac{1}{4} \left(\dot{c_2} \alpha_2^2 P_{22} + \dot{c_3} \alpha_3^2 P_{32} + \dot{c_4} \alpha_4^2 P_{42} \right) - \frac{1}{336} \approx 0.000 018 601$$

$$\dot{T}_9 = \frac{1}{2} \left(\dot{c}_2 \ P_{21}^2 + \dot{c}_3 \ P_{33}^2 + \dot{c}_4 \ P_{41}^2 \right) - \frac{1}{504} \approx 0.000 \ 066 \ 138$$

$$\dot{T}_{13} = \frac{1}{2} \left(\dot{c}_2 \alpha_2 P_{23} + \dot{c}_3 \alpha_3 P_{33} + \dot{c}_4 \alpha_4 P_{43} \right) - \frac{1}{280} \approx 0.000 074 405$$

$$\dot{T}_{14} - \dot{c}_3 \alpha_3 \gamma_{32} P_{21} + \dot{c}_4 \alpha_4 (\gamma_{42} P_{21} + \gamma_{43} P_{31}) - \frac{1}{840} \approx -0.000 033 069$$

$$\dot{T}_{16} = \frac{1}{4} (\dot{c}_2 P_{24} + \dot{c}_3 P_{34} + \dot{c}_4 P_{44}) - \frac{1}{840} \approx 0.000 946 503$$

$$\dot{T}_{18} = \dot{c}_3 \cdot \gamma_{32} \alpha_2 P_{21} + \dot{c}_4 (\gamma_{42} \alpha_2 P_{21} + \gamma_{43} \alpha_3 P_{31}) - \frac{1}{1 \ 260} \approx 0.000 \ 074 \ 405$$

$$\dot{T}_{19} = \frac{1}{2} \left[\dot{c}_3 \gamma_{32} P_{22} + \dot{c}_4 (\gamma_{42} P_{22} + \gamma_{43} P_{32}) \right] - \frac{1}{5 040} \approx 0.000 018 601$$

TABLE 23. APPLICATION OF THE VARIOUS FORMULAS TO A NUMERICAL PROBLEM

 $x = \cos(t^2)$

 $y = \sin(t^2)$

Solution:

 $\sqrt{\pi/2}$

Problem:
$$\begin{pmatrix} \vdots & -4t^2x - \frac{2y}{\sqrt{x^2 + y^2}} \\ \vdots & -4t^2x - \frac{2x}{\sqrt{x^2 + y^2}} \end{pmatrix}$$
 Initial Values: t_1

							7094 Time
Formula	+-	Steps	×T	计	.x 1	Δÿ	(min)
NYSTRÖM: RKN-4	10	172 011	- 0, 2099 · 10-11	- 0.3437 · 10-11	+ 0.6858 · 10-10	$-0.4174 \cdot 10^{-10}$	14.38
RK 4(5)	10	124 073	- 0.1300 · 13 ⁻¹¹	- 0. 2169 · 10 ⁻¹¹	+ 0. 4346 · 10 ⁻¹⁰	- 0.2615 · 10 ⁻¹⁰	13, 95
RKN 4(5)	10	112 529	- 0,1293 · 10 ⁻¹¹	- 0. 2114 · 10 ⁻¹¹	$+ 0.4231 \cdot 10^{-10}$	- 0.2577 · 10 -10	6.35
NYSTRÖM: RKN-5	10	27 584	- 0.3156 · 10 ⁻¹²	- 0.5825 · 10 ⁻¹²	+ 0.1158 · 10 ⁻¹⁰	- 0. 6269 · 10 ⁻¹¹	2.03
RK 5(6)	10	27 177	- 0. 3609 · 10 ⁻¹²	$-0.5067 \cdot 10^{-12}$	$+ 0.1015 \cdot 10^{-10}$	- 0.7176 · 10-11	3, 99
RKN 5(6)	10	18 465	- 0.2273 · 10-12	- 0.3933 · 10 ⁻¹²	+ 0.7808 · 10 ⁻¹¹	- 0,4555 · 10 ⁻¹¹	1, 53
ALBRECHT: RKN-6	10	10 465	- 0.1242 · 10-32	- 0, 2273 · 10 ⁻¹²	+ 0.4539 · 10-11	$-0.2412 \cdot 10^{-11}$	1, 60
RK 6(7)	10	10 873	$-0.1040 \cdot 10^{-12}$	$-0.1806 \cdot 10^{-12}$	+ 9, 3626 · 10-11	- 0, 2069 · 10 ⁻¹¹	2.05
RKN 6(7)	10	7 841	$\begin{bmatrix} -0.7783 \cdot 10^{-13} \end{bmatrix}$	- 0.1376 · 10 ⁻¹²	+ 0. z739 · 10 ⁻¹¹	- 0.1593 · 10 ⁻¹¹	e 18
RK 7(8)	1.0	4 5-11	- 9, 6745 · 10 ⁻¹³	- 0. 1242 · 10 ⁻¹²	$= 0,247i\cdot 10^{-11}$	$-0.1343 \cdot 10^{-11}$	20 +1 -1
RKN7(8)	Ç	21 22 21	- 0, 2531 · 10 ⁻¹³	- 0.3833 - 10 15	$\pm 0.7995 + 10^{-12}$	- 0.5063 · 10 ⁻¹²	64.0
RK 8(9)	10	5 869	- 0,4130 · to 13	$-0.8210 \cdot 10^{-19}$	$+ 0.1630 \cdot 10^{-11}$	$+0.8669 \cdot 10^{-12}$	7.6.7
RKN 8(9)	-	1 452	- 0, 1626 - 10 - 13	$-0.3095 \cdot 10^{-13}$	$+ 0.6093 \cdot 10^{-12}$	$-0.3251 \cdot 10^{-12}$	6.25

			į.
			- !

